
SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND  
DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk at 
1301 81st Avenue NE, Spring Lake Park, MN  55432. Ph.763-784-6491 at least 48 hours in advance. 

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR AGENDA 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 06, 2023 

CITY HALL at 7:00 PM 
 

 
1.     CALL TO ORDER 
2.     ROLL CALL 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
4.     ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA  
5.     DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

A. Twin Cities North Chamber of Commerce - John Connelly 
6.     CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Minutes - January 17, 2023 City Council Meeting 
B. Contractor's Request for Payment No. 3 - DPG - Able Park Shelter 
C. Resolution 2023-05 Accepting Monetary Donation from Spring Lake Park Lions 
D. 2023 Frist Half Assessment - Suburban Rate Authority 
E. Contractor's License 
F. Sign Permits 
G. Business License 

7.     DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
A. Public Works Report 
B. Code Enforcement Report 

8.     PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 530 82nd 

Ave NE, Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 
B. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 7864 Tyler 

St NE, Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 
C. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Lcoated at 7827 

Quincy St NE Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 
D. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 7927 

Buchanan Street NE Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 
E. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 7799 

University Avenue NE Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 
F. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 7779 

University Avenue NE Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 



G. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 7819 
University Avenue NE Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 

H. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 7879 
University Avenue NE Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 

I. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 7825 
Terrace Road NE Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 

J. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 530 81st 
Avenue NE Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 

K. Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 515 78th 
Avenue NE Pursuant to SLPC Section 12.16.140 

9.     ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 
A. Resolution 2023-06, Declaring the Official Intent of the City of Spring Lake Park to 

Reimburse Certain Expenditures from the Proceeds of Tax-Exempt Bonds to be Issued by 
the City of Spring Lake Park 

10.     NEW BUSINESS 
A. Phone System Proposal 
B. Authorize Conditional Job Offer for Public Works Maintenance Position 
C. Schedule Work Session 

11.   REPORTS 
A. Attorney's Report 
B. Engineer's Reports 
C. Administrator Report 

12.   OTHER 
A. Approve Motion to Go Into Closed Session As Permitted by M.S. § 13D.05, subd.3(c) to 

Consider Sale of Lot 4, Block 1 McKinley Manor Addition 
B. Correspondence 

13.   ADJOURN 
  



RULES FOR DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 
DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 Discussion from the floor is limited to three minutes per person. Longer presentations must be 
scheduled through the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer’s office. 

 

 Individuals wishing to be heard must sign in with their name and address. Meetings are video 
recorded so individuals must approach the podium and speak clearly into the microphone. 

 

 Council action or discussion should not be expected during “Discussion from the Floor.” 
Council may direct staff to research the matter further or take the matter under advisement 
for action at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
The purpose of a public hearing is to allow the City Council to receive citizen input on a proposed 
project. This is not a time to debate the issue. 
 
The following format will be used to conduct the hearing: 
 

 The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

 Councilmembers will have the opportunity to ask questions or comment on the proposal. 
 

 Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the project. Those 
wishing the comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes. 

In cases where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their collective opinions 
voiced, the spokesperson should identify the audience group he/she is representing and may have a 
maximum of 10 minutes to express the views of the group. 
 

 People wishing to comment are asked to keep their comments succinct and specific. 
 

 Following public input, Councilmembers will have a second opportunity to ask questions of the 
presenter and/or citizens. 

 

 After everyone wishing to address the subject of the hearing has done so, the Mayor will close 
the public hearing. 

 

 The City Council may choose to take official action on the proposal or defer action until the 
next regularly scheduled Council meeting. No further public input will be received at that time. 



MFGC
Twin Cities North

SPONSORED BY

https://www.twincitiesnorth.org/

Manufacture 
Commitment

Why
•  Position our regional manufactures for 
tomorrow
 
•  Connecting/working collaboratively with 
K12, Tech Colleges and next generation 
students
 
•  Joining local manufacture businesses thru 
collaboration- benefit the industry and the 
individual business

What
•  Proposed Mission:  Become a catalyst for
    strengthening community manufacturing-
    accelerating a transformation into a more  
    efficient and powerful engine of innovation, 
    job creation and economic growth.
 
•  Workforce Acquisition, Incumbent Training, 
    Continuous Improvement

Who
•   Regional Manufacturing 
 • Joining local manufacture businesses 
              thru collaboration- benefit the 
              industry and the individual business
 
•   TCN North membership at large
 • Programing supports an extended 
             connection and value for member 
             business
 
•   Members of the workforce in our region
 • Job creation, career pathway, 
              upskilling programs
 
•   Education Community
 • Connecting/working collaboratively 
              with K12, Tech Colleges and next 
              generation students

Where
•  Regional in proximity, but not necessarily 
limited by, of the service area of the Twin City 
North Chamber of Commerce

When
•  Ongoing effort beginning in December of 
2022.  CoHort interactions expected to be six 
to eight times a year.  For manufacturing, by 
manufacturing – the CoHort members set the 
agenda and frequency of meetings.



VISION: To Promote Business, Develop Leaders 
and Connect Communities



Current Situation for TCN Chamber

• Membership= 300 members in 7 cities

• Financial= Healthy fund balance with 5 months reserve. No debt

• Programs and Events
• Business Councils in each community

• Annual Events for engagement

• Public Policy opportunities

• Promotion of community events, business openings, and career fairs



Board and Governance

• Current 9-member Board representing various industries and 
backgrounds

• In good standing with MN Department of Revenue and updated on 
filings with State and Federal

• Committees
• Ambassadors

• Taskforces

• Marketing

• Public Policy



New Initiatives

• Manufacturing Cohort Group

• Welcome Back to Lexington Avenue

• New Membership Outreach for 2023 in 2nd quarter

• Chamberhealth- through MN Chamber benefit



Opportunities

• Participate in grand openings and ribbon cuttings to welcome 
businesses to your community

• Engage in new initiatives to leverage our resources

• Continue to bring important items up related to businesses operating 
in your community through TCN Chamber communications or at 
Business Councils

• Share vital news to businesses through TCN Chamber newsletter or 
special communications



Thank you for your partnership!



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 
Regular was held on January 17, 2023 at the City Hall, at 7:00 PM. 
 
1.     CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Nelson called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
2.     ROLL CALL 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Mayor Robert Nelson 
Councilmember Ken Wendling 
Councilmember Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff 
Councilmember Lisa Dircks 
Councilmember April Moran 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Police Chief Josh Antoine, Recreation Director Kay Okey, Attorney John Thames, Administrator Daniel 
Buchholtz  
 
VISITOR 
Bruce Paulson - Stantec 
 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
4.     ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA - None 
 
5.     DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR - None 
 
6.     CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of Minutes – December 19, 2022 Council Meeting 
B. Approval of Minutes – January 3, 2023 City Council Meeting 
C. Approval of Minutes – January 9, 2023 Work Session 
D. Approval of Claims – General Disbursement No 22-23 - $803,763.01 
E. Resolution 2023-03 Accepting Donation from Lisa Dircks 
F. Resolution 2023-04 Accepting Monetary Donation from Firehouse Sub’s Public Safety 

Foundation 
G. Contractor’s License 
H.   Sign Permits 

 
Councilmember Wendling inquired of Councilmember Dircks about her donation to the City.  
Councilmember Dircks stated that the money she donated would facilitate distribution of interaction 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 January 17, 2023 
 
kits by the Police Department to the City’s non-housed population.  She stated that the kits provide a 
list of resources along with necessities for the unhoused population in the City. 
 
Councilmember Wendling inquired of Police Chief Antoine about the Firehouse Sub’s Public Safety 
Foundation Grant.  Chief Antoine explained that the grant will allow the Police Department to purchase 
AED’s for City Hall and other facilities.  He noted that the Department was approached by the 
University of Minnesota to participate in a study for AED’s in squad cars.  He commented that both 
grants were provided to the Police Department. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wendling to approve Consent Agenda. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff, Councilmember Dircks, 
Councilmember Moran, Mayor Nelson.  Motion carried. 
 
7.     DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 
A. Police Report 
 
Chief Antoine reported that the Police Department responded to 684 calls for service in 
December 2022 compared to 701 calls for service for the month of December 2021.   He said 
that School Resource Officer Imig reported handling 6 calls for service in December, as well as 
handling 10 student contacts, 6 student escorts and 17 follow-up investigations. Investigator 
Bennek reported handling 29 cases for the month of December, 27 of which are felony in 
nature, 2 misdemeanor cases, while monitoring 6 forfeiture cases.   
 
Chief Antoine noted that the range is completed and fully operational.  He noted that the Police 
Department took in and destroyed over three hundred pounds of prescription drugs. 

 
B. Recreation Report 

 
 Report accepted as presented.  
 
8.     NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve Quote for Design and Construction Services – City Hall Renovation and Expansion 
Project 
 
Administrator Buchholtz stated that the City received a quote from Stantec for the City Hall 
Renovation and Expansion Design and Construction Project.  He noted that the current 
project cost is less than the original design and construction cost quoted in the 2017 space 
needs study.  Administrator Buchholtz stated that the project is split into three phases:  
design, bidding and construction. 
 
Bruce Paulson, Architect with Stantec gave an overview of the project and what was being 
designed for visibility and user friendliness.  Mr. Paulson stated that the design phase would 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 January 17, 2023 
 

take a more in-depth look at the spaces and give each staff member a chance to give input 
on what will work and what may be needed for each department. 

 
Mayor Nelson noted the importance of involving the staff.  Administrator Buchholtz stated 
that the plans will involve a lot of energy efficiencies implementation.     
 
Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired about funding for the City Hall Renovation 
project and the impact on tax payers.  Administrator Buchholtz gave a preliminary overview 
of funding sources. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wendling to Approve Quote for Design and Construction 
Services – City Hall Renovation and Expansion Project 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff, 
Councilmember Dircks, Councilmember Moran, Mayor Nelson.  Motion carried. 

 
 9.   REPORTS 

 
A. Attorney’s Report – No Report 
 
B. Engineer’s Report – Report in packet 

 
C. Administrator Report  
 
 Administrator Buchholtz stated that he toured the new Able Park Building with the 

Recreation staff to view progress on the renovation.  He thanked Chief Antoine for putting 
together the Coffee with a Cop and the Council for supporting the next step for the City Hall 
Renovation Project. 

 
10.   OTHER 
 

A. Correspondence – None 
 

B. Beyond the Yellow Ribbon 
 
Mayor Nelson noted that the Pork Chop Dinner would be held on Monday, January 23, 
2023. 

 
11.   ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wendling to adjourn. 
 
Voting Aye:  Councilmember Wendling, Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff, Councilmember Dircks, 
Councilmember Moran, Mayor Nelson. Motion carried. 
 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 January 17, 2023 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:39 PM. 
 
   

 Robert Nelson, Mayor 
 
Attest:   

  

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 
 



Invoice22401 Industrial Blvd
Rogers, MN  55374
Phone:  612-213-2210
Fax: 612-392-7944

Date Invoice #
Dec 30, 

2022
2026

Bill To Ship To
City of Spring Lake Park
1301 81st Ave NE
Spring Lake Park, MN  55432

8200 Able Park
Spring Lake Park, MN  55432

P.O. No. Terms Due Date Job
30 Jan 29, 2023 22036-Able Park Shelter

Description Qty Unit Price Amount
Progress Billing Application No. 3 152,827.12

Retainage 7,641.36
Tax 0.00
Total $145,185.76

Tax No. 80-0696128



$145,185.77

1.30.2023



Dering Pierson Group
22401 Industrial Blvd
Rogers, MN  55374
612-213-2210
612-392-7944

City of Spring Lake Park
APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

Job No.:  22036
Job: Able Park Shelter

Application No:  3.0
Application Date:  Dec 1, 2022

Period To: Dec 30, 2022

           CONTRACT
A B C D E F G H I

Work Completed
Item

# Description of Work Scheduled
Value From Previous 

Application(s) This Period

Materials 
Presently 

Stored

Total Completed 
and Stored To Date % Balance to 

Finish

Retainage
(If Variable 

Rate)

01 General Condtions 64,124.01 17,954.72 16,031.01 0 33,985.73 53 30,138.28 1,699.29
02 Winter Conditions 840.00 840.00 0 0 840.00 100 0 42.00
03 Demolition 9,500.00 8,550.00 950.00 0 9,500.00 100 0 475.00
04 Site Work 17,415.00 16,544.25 870.75 0 17,415.00 100 0 870.75
05 Concrete 27,475.00 24,727.50 2,747.50 0 27,475.00 100 0 1,373.75
06 Carpentry 71,213.56 56,970.85 0 0 56,970.85 80 14,242.71 2,848.54
07 Thermal and Moisture Protection 67,130.00 0 30,208.50 0 30,208.50 45 36,921.50 1,510.43
08 Doors & Frames 8,410.91 5,046.55 0 0 5,046.55 60 3,364.36 252.33
09 Joint Sealants 750.00 0 0 0 0 0 750.00 0
10 Glass and Glazing 49,613.85 0 29,768.31 0 29,768.31 60 19,845.54 1,488.42
11 Gyp Board Walls 7,410.00 0 0 0 0 0 7,410.00 0
12 Flooring 26,694.25 0 0 0 0 0 26,694.25 0
13 Painting 10,140.00 0 0 0 0 0 10,140.00 0
14 Specialties 3,999.00 0 0 0 0 0 3,999.00 0
15 Equipment 325.00 0 325.00 0 325.00 100 0 16.25
16 Sprinkler System 17,629.00 881.45 13,221.75 0 14,103.20 80 3,525.80 705.16
17 Plumbing 39,800.00 11,940.00 11,940.00 0 23,880.00 60 15,920.00 1,194.00
18 HVAC 65,490.00 6,549.00 13,098.00 0 19,647.00 30 45,843.00 982.35
19 Electrical 57,782.00 8,667.30 20,223.70 0 28,891.00 50 28,891.00 1,444.55
20 OH&P 53,770.42 15,055.72 13,442.60 0 28,498.32 53 25,272.10 1,424.92
21 ALT 1 - Metal Roofing 11,088.00 0 0 0 0 0 11,088.00 0   

610,600.00 173,727.34 152,827.12 0 326,554.46 53 284,045.54 16,327.72

ADDITIONS TO CONTRACT
CO-001 Bathroom Floor Drains 1,570.25 0 0 0 0 0 1,570.25 0

1,570.25 0 0 0 0 0 1,570.25 0

Grand TOTAL: 612,170.25 173,727.34 152,827.12 0 326,554.46 53 285,615.79 16,327.72



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-05 

 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A DONATION TO THE CITY FROM THE SPRING 

LAKE PARK LIONS CLUB 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Spring Lake Park is generally authorized to accept donations of real and 

personal property pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 465.03 for the benefit of its citizens, 

and is specifically authorized to accept gifts; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Spring Lake Park Lions Club has offered to contribute $23,340.00 to the city; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Spring Lake Park Lions Club’s donation is to be applied towards Tower Days, 

Senior Valentin Lunch and the Sweetheart Dance 

 

WHEREAS, all such donations have been contributed to the city for the benefit of its citizens, as 

allowed by law; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is appropriate to accept the donations offered. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The donations described above are accepted with gratitude and shall be used to establish 

and/or operate services either alone or in cooperation with others, as allowed by law. 

2. The city clerk is hereby directed to issue receipts to the donor acknowledging the city’s 

receipt of the donation. 

 

The foregoing resolution was moved for adoption by  

 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye:  

 

And the following voted nay: None. 

 

Whereupon the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this 6th day of February, 

2023. 

 

 

              

       Robert Nelson, Mayor 

  

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



State of Minnesota   ) 

Counties of Anoka and Ramsey )ss 

City of Spring Lake Park  ) 

 

I, Daniel R. Buchholtz, duly appointed and qualified Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer in and for 

the City of Spring Lake Park, Anoka and Ramsey Counties, Minnesota, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2023-05, A Resolution Accepting a 

Donation to the City from the Spring Lake Park Lions Club, adopted by the Spring Lake Park 

City Council at their regular meeting on the 6th day of February 2023. 

 

 

              

       Daniel R. Buchholtz 

Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

 

  (SEAL) 

 

       Dated:       

        





































City of Spring Lake Park   
1301 81st Avenue NE 

Spring Lake Park MN 55432 
 

Business License – Massage 
February 6, 2023 

 
 
Spring Lake Park Spa 
7777 Highway 65 NE 
Enterprise License – Xiaoxin Qu   MTE-23-03 
Individual Tech – Xiaoxin Qu   MT-23-04 
 
 
 



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Nelson and Members of the City Council 

From:  Terry Randall, Public Works Director 

Date:  February 1, 2023 

Subject: January 2023 Public Works Report 
 

 
During the month of January, the Public Works Department was busy doing the following activities:  

 Continue to do daily maintenance of the skating rinks, sweeping, shoveling and flooding them. 

 Have plowed seven (7) times which includes all parking lots and sidewalks.  Snow was hauled 
away from the cul-de-sacs, corners and in front of the hydrants.  The snow was hauled to 
parking lots. 

 As time permits staff is blowing snow out in front of mailboxes. 

 The Parks staff was busy cleaning and flooding skating rinks. 

 The Water Department had two water main breaks.  One at 8000 Spring Lake Park Road and the 
other was at Lakewood Drive and 83rd Avenue.  Valley Rich Company made the repairs.   

 On the cold days staff was working on rebuilding an old snow plow and maintenance on the 
sidewalk machine, trucks and loader. 

 Making repairs to meters that did not give a reading. 
 



City of Spring lake Park 
Code Enforcement Division 
1301 Eighty First Avenue Northeast 

Spring Lake Park, Minnesota 55432 

(763) 783-6491   Fax:  (763) 792-7257 

 
 

REPORT 
 

 

TO:  Spring Lake Park City Council 
 

FROM: Jeff Baker, Code Enforcement Director 
 

RE:  Code Enforcement Monthly Report for January 2023 
 

DATE: February 1, 2023 

 

 

The Spring Lake Park Code Enforcement department is the authority having jurisdiction for all 

building, mechanical, plumbing, fire, rental, property nuisance and zoning codes within Spring 

Lake Park. 
 

In January, a total of 13 building, 1 certificate of occupancy, 15 mechanical, 13 plumbing, 2 Fire 

and 1 Zoning for a total of 45 permits issued compared to a total of 18 in 2022.  Code 

Enforcement conducted 109 inspections in the month of January including 45 Building, 36 

rental, 11 nuisance, 15 fire and 2 zoning inspections.   

 

Inspector Morris and I, spent quite a bit of time on letters and postings for the delinquent rental 

properties. We have had some push back by some owners, but I feel that there has been more 

positive feedback than negative. 

 

The Code Enforcement department is working on how to educate commercial building owners 

on our Certificate of Occupancy Program. We are trying to eliminate any future hardship by 

ensuring that the tenants are aware of all City and State regulations prior to relocating their 

business. Rather than move into a building and needing extensive repairs to make it code 

compliant. 

 

Construction Update: 

Able Park: All rough-in inspections have been completed 

 

City Moving & Storage: CMS has been issued their Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, some 

minor things that need to be taken care of when weather permits. All life safety aspects have 

been completed. 

 
 

In January of 2023, I also attended the following appointments: 
 

 City Council meeting on Monday, January 2nd. 

 Department Head meeting on January 3rd. 

 Building Officials Conference, January 23rd & 24th. 

 



This concludes the Code Enforcement Department monthly report for January 2020.  If anyone 

has any questions or concerns regarding my report, I would be happy to answer them at this time. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 530 82nd AVE NE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 12.16.140 OF THE 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK CODE 

WHEREAS, FYR SFR Borrower LLC (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of the real 

property at 530 82nd Ave NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting 

forth the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public 

hearing to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license holder on January 4, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park 

that, in accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake 

Park, the City Council adopts the following. 
 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about November 4, 2022 Code Enforcement staff emailed out a reminder letter to the 

property owner of 530 82nd Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property owner 

failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

2. That on or about November 4, 2022 Code Enforcement staff called the phone number on file for 

the property owner of 530 82nd Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property owner 

failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

3. That on or about November 16, 2022 Code Enforcement staff mailed out a reminder letter to 

the property owner of 530 82nd Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property 

owner failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year. 

4. That on or about December 16, 2022 Code Enforcement staff mailed out a reminder letter to the 

property owner of 530 82nd Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property owner 

failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

5. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure to renew rental license with the City of Spring Lake Park prior to January 1, 2023. 

6. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park. 

Order of 

Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as Home FYR 

SFR Borrower LLC is hereby revoked; 

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder. 



 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 

 
Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 
And the following voted nay: 

 
Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th day of 

February 6, 2023. 

 

 

 

Robert Nelson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7864 TYLER ST NE, PURSUANT TO SLPC SECTION 12.16.140 

 

WHEREAS, Home SFR Borrower LLC (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of 

the real property at 7864 Tyler St NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting 

forth the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public 

hearing to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license holder on January 4, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park 

that, in accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake 

Park, the City Council adopts the following. 

 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about November 4, 2022 Code Enforcement staff emailed out a reminder letter to the 

property owner of 7864 Tyler St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property owner 

failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

2. That on or about November 4, 2022 Code Enforcement staff called the phone number on file for 

the property owner of 7864 Tyler St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property 

owner failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

3. That on or about November 16, 2022 Code Enforcement staff mailed out a reminder letter to the 

property owner of 7864 Tyler St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property owner 

failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year. 

4. That on or about December 16, 2022 Code Enforcement staff mailed out a reminder letter to the 

property owner of 7864 Tyler St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property owner 

failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

5. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure to renew rental license with the City of Spring Lake Park prior to January 1, 2023. 

6. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park. 

Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as Home SFR 

Borrower LLC is hereby revoked; 

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder. 



 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 

 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th day of 

February 6, 2023. 

 

 

 

Robert Nelson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator 



RESOLUTION NO. 23-XX 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7827 Quincy St NE, PURSUANT TO SLPC SECTION 

12.16.140 

WHEREAS, FYR SFR Borrower LLC (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of 

the real property at 7827 Quincy St NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice 

setting forth the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice 

of a public hearing to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license 

holder on January 4, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake 

Park that, in accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of 

Spring Lake Park, the City Council adopts the following. 

 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about November 4, 2022 Code Enforcement staff emailed out a reminder 

letter to the property owner of 7827 Quincy St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park 

MN. The property owner failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

2. That on or about November 4, 2022 Code Enforcement staff called the phone number on 

file for the property owner of 7827 Quincy St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. 

The property owner failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

3. That on or about November 16, 2022 Code Enforcement staff mailed out a reminder 

letter to the property owner of 7827 Quincy St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park 

MN. The property owner failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year. 

4. That on or about December 16, 2022 Code Enforcement staff mailed out a reminder 

letter to the property owner of 7827 Quincy St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park 

MN. The property owner failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

5. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and 

violations of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure to renew rental license with the City of Spring Lake Park prior to January 

1, 2023. 

6. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been 

given the appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City 

Code, Chapter 12 Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park. 

Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as 

FYR SFR Borrower LLC is hereby revoked; 

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the 

buildings covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first 

day of posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder. 



 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 

 

 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th 

day of February 6, 2023. 

 

 

Robert Nelson, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator 



City of Spring Lake Park  

RESOLUTION NO. 23- 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7927 

Buchanan St NE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 12.16.140 OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK CODE  

WHEREAS, MN Equitable Housing Buyer 1 LLC (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of the 

real property at 7927 Buchanan St NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting forth 

the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public hearing 

to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license holder on January 4, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park that, in 

accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake Park, the 

City Council adopts the following. 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about November 4, 2022 Code Enforcement staff emailed out a reminder letter to 

the property owner of 7927 Buchanan St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property 

owner failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

2. That on or about November 4, 2022 Code Enforcement staff called the phone number on file for 

the property owner of 7927 Buchanan St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property 

owner failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

3. That on or about November 16, 2022 Code Enforcement staff mailed out a reminder letter to 

the property owner of 7927 Buchanan St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property 

owner failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year.  

4. That on or about December 16, 2022 Code Enforcement staff mailed out a reminder letter to 

the property owner of 7927 Buchanan St NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property 

owner failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

5. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure to renew rental license with the City of Spring Lake Park prior to January 1, 2023. 

6. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park.  

Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as MN 

Equitable Housing Buyer 1 LLC is hereby revoked;  

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder.  



 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 

 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th day of  

February 6, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

     Robert Nelson, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator  

 



City of Spring Lake Park  

RESOLUTION NO. 23- 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7799 

University Ave NE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 12.16.140 OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK CODE  

WHEREAS, Northtown Village Partnership (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of the real 

property at 7799 University Ave NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting forth 

the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public hearing 

to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license holder on January 17, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park that, in 

accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake Park, the 

City Council adopts the following. 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about November 29, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed an initial rental 

housing inspection at the property of 7799 University Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. 

The property failed its rental inspection.  

2. That on or about December 30, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed a follow up inspection 

at the property of 7799 University Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property failed  

re-inspection.  

3. That on or about January 17, 2023 the property owner and all tenants were notified of the pre-

council inspection scheduled for February 6, 2023 at 10:00 am.  

4. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure of rental housing inspection on November 29, 2022.  

b. Failure of rental housing re-inspection on December 30, 2022.  

5. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park.  

Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as Northtown 

Village Partnership is hereby revoked;  

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder.  

 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 



 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th day of  

February 6, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

     Robert Nelson, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator  

 



City of Spring Lake Park  

RESOLUTION NO. 23- 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7779 

University Ave NE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 12.16.140 OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK CODE  

WHEREAS, Northtown Village Partnership (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of the real 

property at 7779 University Ave NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting forth 

the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public hearing 

to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license holder on January 17, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park that, in 

accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake Park, the 

City Council adopts the following. 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about November 29, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed an initial rental 

housing inspection at the property of 7779 University Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. 

The property failed its rental inspection.  

2. That on or about December 30, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed a follow up inspection 

at the property of 7779 University Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property failed  

re-inspection.  

3. That on or about January 17, 2023 the property owner and all tenants were notified of the pre-

council inspection scheduled for February 6, 2023 at 10:00 am.  

4. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure of rental housing inspection on November 29, 2022.  

b. Failure of rental housing re-inspection on December 30, 2022.  

5. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park.  

Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as Northtown 

Village Partnership is hereby revoked;  

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder.  

 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 



 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th day of  

February 6, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

     Robert Nelson, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator  

 



City of Spring Lake Park  

RESOLUTION NO. 23- 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7819 

University Ave NE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 12.16.140 OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK CODE  

WHEREAS, Northtown Village Partnership (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of the real 

property at 7819 University Ave NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting forth 

the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public hearing 

to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license holder on January 17, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park that, in 

accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake Park, the 

City Council adopts the following. 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about November 29, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed an initial rental 

housing inspection at the property of 7819 University Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. 

The property failed its rental inspection.  

2. That on or about December 30, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed a follow up inspection 

at the property of 7819 University Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property failed  

re-inspection.  

3. That on or about January 17, 2023 the property owner and all tenants were notified of the pre-

council inspection scheduled for February 6, 2023 at 10:00 am.  

4. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure of rental housing inspection on November 29, 2022.  

b. Failure of rental housing re-inspection on December 30, 2022.  

5. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park.  

Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as Northtown 

Village Partnership is hereby revoked;  

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder.  

 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 



 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th day of  

February 6, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

     Robert Nelson, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator  

 



City of Spring Lake Park  

RESOLUTION NO. 23- 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7879 

University Ave NE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 12.16.140 OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK CODE  

WHEREAS, Northtown Village Partnership (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of the real 

property at 7879 University Ave NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting forth 

the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public hearing 

to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license holder on January 17, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park that, in 

accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake Park, the 

City Council adopts the following. 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about November 29, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed an initial rental 

housing inspection at the property of 7879 University Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. 

The property failed its rental inspection.  

2. That on or about December 30, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed a follow up inspection 

at the property of 7879 University Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property failed  

re-inspection.  

3. That on or about January 17, 2023 the property owner and all tenants were notified of the pre-

council inspection scheduled for February 6, 2023 at 10:00 am.  

4. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure of rental housing inspection on November 29, 2022.  

b. Failure of rental housing re-inspection on December 30, 2022.  

5. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park.  

Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as Northtown 

Village Partnership is hereby revoked;  

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder.  

 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 



 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th day of  

February 6, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

     Robert Nelson, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator  

 



City of Spring Lake Park  

RESOLUTION NO. 23- 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7825 

Terrace Rd NE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 12.16.140 OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK CODE  

WHEREAS, Ricky Huynh (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of the real property at 7825 

Terrace Rd NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting forth 

the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public hearing 

to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license holder on January 17, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park that, in 

accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake Park, the 

City Council adopts the following. 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about December 9, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed an initial rental housing 

inspection at the property of 7825 Terrace Rd NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The 

property failed its rental inspection.  

2. That on or about January 13, 2023 Code Enforcement staff completed a follow up inspection at 

the property of 7825 Terrace Rd NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property failed  

re-inspection.  

3. That on or about January 17, 2023 the property owner and all tenants were notified of the pre-

council inspection scheduled for February 6, 2023 at 1:30 pm.  

4. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure of rental housing inspection on December 9, 2022.  

b. Failure of rental housing re-inspection on January 13, 2023.  

5. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park.  

Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as Ricky Huynh 

is hereby revoked;  

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder.  

 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 



 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th day of  

February 6, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

     Robert Nelson, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator  

 



City of Spring Lake Park  

RESOLUTION NO. 23- 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 530 

78th Ave NE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 12.16.140 OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK CODE  

WHEREAS, Payant W Randall (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of the real property at 

530 78th Ave NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting forth 

the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public hearing 

to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license holder on January 4, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park that, in 

accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake Park, the 

City Council adopts the following. 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about November 4, 2022 Code Enforcement staff emailed out a reminder letter to 

the property owner of 530 78th Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property owner 

failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

2. That on or about November 4, 2022 Code Enforcement staff called the phone number on file for 

the property owner of 530 78th Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property owner 

failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

3. That on or about November 16, 2022 Code Enforcement staff mailed out a reminder letter to 

the property owner of 530 78th Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property owner 

failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year.  

4. That on or about December 16, 2022 Code Enforcement staff mailed out a reminder letter to 

the property owner of 530 78th Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property owner 

failed to renew the rental license for the 2023 calendar year 

5. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure to renew rental license with the City of Spring Lake Park prior to January 1, 2023. 

6. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park.  

Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as Payant W 

Randall is hereby revoked;  

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder.  



 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 

 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th day of  

February 6, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

     Robert Nelson, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator  

 



City of Spring Lake Park  

RESOLUTION NO. 23- 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 515 

78th Ave NE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 12.16.140 OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK CODE  

WHEREAS, Ricky Huynh (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of the real property at 515 78th 

Ave NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting forth 

the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public hearing 

to be held on at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2023 was given to the license holder on January 17, 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park that, in 

accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake Park, the 

City Council adopts the following. 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about December 9, 2022 Code Enforcement staff completed an initial rental housing 

inspection at the property of 515 78th Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property 

failed its rental inspection.  

2. That on or about January 13, 2023 Code Enforcement staff completed a follow up inspection at 

the property of 515 78th Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property failed  

re-inspection.  

3. That on or about January 17, 2023 the property owner and all tenants were notified of the pre-

council inspection scheduled for February 6, 2023 at 1:00 pm.  

4. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure of rental housing inspection on December 9, 2022.  

b. Failure of rental housing re-inspection on January 13, 2023.  

5. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park.  

Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as Ricky Huynh 

is hereby revoked;  

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder.  

 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 



 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 6th day of  

February 6, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

     Robert Nelson, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator  

 



 
Memorandum 
To:  Mayor Nelson and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  February 2, 2023 

Subject: Resolution 2023-06 
 
The City Council has authorized moving forward with design for the City Hall renovation and 
expansion project. 
 
In order to maintain maximum flexibility, staff is recommending the City Council approve 
Resolution 2023-06, which declares its intent to reimburse certain expenditures with proceeds 
from the sale of tax-exempt bonds.  The City Council has approved similar resolutions in the past 
for other projects.  This is required by IRS regulations if the City reimburses itself for any 
expenditure greater than 60 days prior to the issuance of the bonds.  As bond issuance is likely in 
December 2023 or January 2024, the ability to seek reimbursement for architectural design 
expenses would be limited without the resolution.  It does not mandate the City Council 
reimburse itself for project expenditures from the issuance of tax-exempt bonds. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the resolution.  If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to 
contact me at 763-784-6491. 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-06 

 

 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE OFFICIAL INTENT OF THE CITY OF SPRING 

LAKE PARK TO REIMBURSE CERTAIN EXPENDITURES FROM THE PROCEEDS 

OF TAX-EXEMPT BONDS TO BE ISSUED BY THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

 

WHEREAS, the Internal Revenue Service has issued Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 (the 

“Reimbursement Regulations”) providing the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds used to reimburse 

prior expenditures will not be deemed spent unless certain requirements are met; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City expects to incur certain expenditures that may be financed 

temporarily from sources other than bonds, and reimbursed from the proceeds of a tax-exempt 

bond; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined to make this declaration of official intent 

(“Declaration”) to reimburse certain costs from proceeds of bonds in accordance with the 

Reimbursement Regulations. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The City proposes to undertake the renovation and expansion of its City Hall facility 

located at 1301 81st Avenue NE, Spring Lake Park, MN (the “Project”). 

 

2. The City reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures made for certain costs of 

the Project from the proceeds of bonds in an estimated maximum principal amount of 

$9,000,000.  All reimbursed expenditures will be capital expenditures, costs of 

issuance of the bonds, or other expenditures eligible for reimbursement under Section 

1.150-2(d)(3) of the Reimbursement Regulations. 

 

3. This Declaration has been made not later than sixty (60) days after payment of any 

original expenditure to be subject to a reimbursement allocation with respect to the 

proceeds of bonds, except for the following expenditures: (a) costs of issuance of tax-

exempt obligations; (b) costs in an amount not in excess of $100,000 or 5 percent of 

the proceeds of an issue; or (c) “preliminary expenditures” up to an amount not in 

excess of twenty percent (20%) of the aggregate issue price of the issue or issues that 

finance or are reasonably expected by the City to finance the project for which the 

preliminary expenditures were incurred.  The term “preliminary expenditures” 

includes architectural, engineering, surveying, tax-exempt obligation issuance, and 

similar costs that are incurred prior to commencement of acquisition, construction or 

rehabilitation of a project, other than land acquisition, site preparation, and similar 

costs incident to commencement of construction. 

 

4. This Declaration is an expression of the reasonable expectations of the City based on 

the facts and circumstances known to the City as of the date hereof. The anticipated 



original expenditures for the Project and the principal amount of the bonds described 

in paragraph 2 are consistent with the City’s budgetary and financial circumstances.  

No sources other than proceeds of bonds to be issued by the City are, or are 

reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set 

aside pursuant to the City’s budget or financial policies to pay such Project 

expenditures. 

 

5. This Declaration is intended to constitute a declaration of official intent for purposes 

of the Reimbursement Regulations. 

 

 

The foregoing resolution was moved for adoption by  

 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye:  

 

And the following voted nay: None. 

 

Whereupon the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this 6th day of February, 

2023. 

 

 

              

       Robert Nelson, Mayor 

  

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



State of Minnesota   ) 

Counties of Anoka and Ramsey )ss 

City of Spring Lake Park  ) 

 

I, Daniel R. Buchholtz, duly appointed and qualified Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer in and for 

the City of Spring Lake Park, Anoka and Ramsey Counties, Minnesota, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2023-06, A Resolution Declaring the 

Official Intent of the City Of Spring Lake Park to Reimburse Certain Expenditures from the 

Proceeds of Tax-Exempt Bonds to be Issued by the City Of Spring Lake Park, adopted by the 

Spring Lake Park City Council at their regular meeting on the 6th day of February 2023. 

 

 

              

       Daniel R. Buchholtz 

Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

 

  (SEAL) 

 

       Dated:       

        











































 
Memorandum 
To:  Mayor Nelson and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  February 1, 2023 

Subject: PW Hire 
 
Staff has been working over the past several weeks to recruit the sixth member of our public works 
team, after Ken Prokott’s retirement.  Staff received nine applications and interviewed three 
candidates.  The interview panel consisted of Public Works Director Randall, Lead Maintenance 
Worker DeBoer and me.  Staff recommends Trevor Heller for the vacant Public Works 
Maintenance Worker position. 
 
Mr. Heller graduated from Spring Lake Park High School.  He has worked in a number of jobs 
that have given him a broad range of experience, particularly in auto vehicle repair and 
maintenance.  He also has strong customer service skills. 
 
Staff recommends granting a conditional offer to Mr. Heller subject to passage of a pre-
employment drug test. 
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 



 
Memorandum 
To:  Mayor Nelson and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  February 1, 2023 

Subject: Work session 
 
Staff is requesting a work session be scheduled for Monday, February 13 at 5:30pm. 
 
The following is the proposed agenda for the work session: 

1. Statement of Values 
2. City Hall update 
3. Council Reports 
4. Administrator Reports 

 
If you have an item you would like included with the agenda, please let me know so we can begin 
to assemble agenda materials. 
 
 



 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 02.06.23 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.    
 

2023 MS4 Permit and SWPPP Update (193805251).  Annual Report is due by June 30th.  The 

Annual Public Meeting can be held in June.   Pond, structural BMP, and outfall inspections due by 
July 31st.  Program analysis and annual training is due in December.     
 
2021 Sewer Lining Project (193805204).  This project included lining in the general area between 

Terrace and Monroe and south of 81st Avenue.  Terry Randall is watching this project.  Lining work 
has been completed. Contractor is Visu-Sewer.  Grout work will be completed in early 2023.  
Grout work was delayed by the Contractor (at no price increase to city).             

 
2023 Sewer Lining Project (193805871).  Terry Randall has received preliminary televising 
reports of the remaining sanitary sewers in the city that need to be lined (approximately 
30,000-feet).  Plans and specs were ordered on 9-6-22.  Bidding will occur this spring.                   

 
City Hall Building (193805580 and 193806049).  The Design Phase for a possible city hall remodel 

project started in January 2023.  The schedule calls for obtaining construction bids in late 2023.       
A kick-off meeting was held on January 26, 2023.  Another meeting is scheduled for February 7th.            

 
2022-2023 City of Mounds View Street Project (trail in Spring Lake Park along Co. Rd 10): SAP 
183-020-009 (193805303).  Spring Lake Park’s portion of this project is a segment of bituminous trail 
along the south side of Co. Rd. 10 east of Sprig Lake Road to the east city limits (without lighting).  
Highway 10 trail construction will occur in 2023.  Spring Lake Park needs to consider pavement 
markings on Spring Lake Rd., Hillview Rd., and Pleasant View Dr.        

 
2024 Sanburnol Drive and Elm Drive NE (19380____).  Sanburnol Drive was last reconstructed in 
1998.  The roadway surface is deteriorating and is in need of  rehabilitation.  Sanburnol Drive is a shared 
road between the cities of Spring Lake Park and Blaine.  This project will be lead by Spring Lake Park but it 

will be a cooperative project between Blaine and Spring Lake Park.  Currently working with Blaine to 
arrange geotechnical borings.      

 
Take 5 Express Car Wash (8301 Univ. Ave. NE):   Revised plans dated 8-24-22 have been 
submitted that include a sidewalk on 83rd Ave and the tree removal as recommended in the traffic 
study.   A site inspection will be completed this spring.      

 
Suite Living Spring Lake Park (Hampton Cos. project at 525 Osborne).  A site work and 
landscaping inspection needs to be completed in 2023.  The remining financial surety will be held until 
a final inspection (including landscaping) and CCWD sign off in 2023.         

 
 
Please contact Phil Carlson, Peter Allen, Bruce Paulson, or me if you have questions or require additional information. 



 

   
 

 
February 1, 2023 

 
Mr. Dan Buchholtz, Administrator 
City of Spring Lake Park  
1301  81st Avenue NE   
Spring Lake Park, MN  55432  
 

Re:  Municipal State Aid Account Update  

Dear Dan: 

This letter is to provide you with an update on the city’s Municipal State Aid account.     

2023 Annual Distribution.  The MnDOT Office of State Aid recently announced the 2023 
Maintenance and Construction Apportionments for the MSAS cities as approved by the Commissioner of 
Transportation.  The City of Spring Lake Park received the following allocations:  
 

• 2023 Construction allocation of $256,772 (compared to $257,098 in 2022, $217,170  in 2021, 
$234,385 in 2020, $212,486 in 2019, $204,421 in 2018, $180,097 in 2017, $176,127 in 2016, and 
$168,062 in 2015).   

 
• 2023 Maintenance allocation of $85,591 (compared to $85,699 in 2022, $72,390  in 2021, $78,129 

in 2020, $70,829 in 2019, $68,140 in 2018, $60,033 in 2017, $58,709 in 2016, and $56,021 in 2015).   
 
The total combined construction and maintenance allocation for 2023 is $342,363. The 2023 total 
allotment is about the same as 2022 ($342,797).  There was a large allocation increase between 2021 and 
2022.  Apart from 2021 (lower because of reduced gas tax revenue), The total allocation had increased 
steadily over the past 7 years.       
 
The City still has a small pending reimbursement amount in the State Aid system from the 2014-2015 Street 
Improvement project.  There are also pending allocations from the 2021 Pleasant View Dr. Paving (SAP 
183-101-012) and the 2023 Co Hwy 10 Trail Project (SAP 183-030-009)     This means that the city is 
eligible to receive most of the current the construction portion of their State Aid allocation by submitting 
additional reimbursement requests. Any excess construction allocation funds can be reserved for a future 
Sanburnol Drive project or future traffic signal maintenance projects.     

 
2022 Annual Certification of Mileage.  We completed the paperwork associated with the annual 
certification of mileage on December 29,2022.  The certification was submitted it to the Office of State Aid 
on January 6, 2023.  A copy of the certification form is attached.  There were no mileage changes from the 
previous year.     

2023 Annual Map Update.  We completed the MnDOT requested annual map update paperwork.  A 
copy of the current MnDOT city map is attached.   

Feel free to contact Jeff Preston of me if you have any questions or require any additional information.  

Sincerely,  
Stantec 

 
Phil Gravel, City Engineer  
        



AN
N

U
AL

 C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

O
F 

M
IL

EA
G

E
SE

E 
IN

ST
RU

CT
IO

NS
 IN

CL
UD

ED
 O

N 
W

EB
 S

IT
E

RE
CO

RD
 R

EV
IS

IO
NS

 O
N 

BA
CK

 O
F 

FO
RM

I
II

III
IV

V
VI

VI
I

VI
II

IX
X

XI
XI

I

1.
   

Tr
un

k 
H

ig
hw

ay
s

2.
   

Tr
un

k 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

Tu
rn

ba
ck

s
   

(D
es

ig
na

te
d 

as
 M

SA
S 

- m
ile

ag
e 

ab
ov

e 
20

%
)

3.
   

C
ou

nt
y 

St
at

e 
Ai

d 
H

ig
hw

ay
s

   
   

(E
xc

lu
de

 m
ile

ag
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 a

s 
M

SA
S)

4.
   

C
ou

nt
y 

St
at

e 
Ai

d 
H

ig
hw

ay
 T

ur
nb

ac
ks

  (
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
as

 M
SA

S 
- m

ile
ag

e 
ab

ov
e 

20
%

)
   

 (+
 o

r -
)

5.
  T

ot
al

 M
ile

ag
e 

of
 L

in
e 

1 
Th

ru
 4

   
Pr

ev
io

us
   

=
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t =
C

ur
re

nt
   

=
 

 

6.
   

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

ta
te

 A
id

 S
tr

ee
ts

(E
xc

lu
de

 T
ru

nk
 a

nd
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

ig
hw

ay
 T

ur
nb

ac
ks

 7.
   

C
ou

nt
y 

R
oa

d 
Tu

rn
ba

ck
s

 (D
es

ig
na

te
d 

as
 M

SA
S)

8.
   

C
ou

nt
y 

R
oa

ds
   

  (
Ex

cl
ud

e 
m

ile
ag

e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
s 

M
SA

S)
9.

   
O

th
er

 L
oc

al
 R

oa
ds

 A
nd

 S
tr

ee
ts

 - 
no

t d
es

ig
na

te
d 

   
  (

In
cl

ud
e 

T.
H

. &
 C

SA
H

 fr
on

ta
ge

 ro
ad

s)
   

 (+
 o

r -
)

10
.  

 T
ot

al
 Im

pr
ov

ed
 B

as
ic

 M
ile

ag
e 

(li
ne

s 
6 

+ 
7 

+ 
8 

+ 
9)

   
Pr

ev
io

us
   

=
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t =
C

ur
re

nt
   

=

11
.  

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

Li
m

ita
tio

n 
Al

lo
w

ed
 b

y 
St

at
ut

e
X

0.
20

12
.  

 M
AX

IM
U

M
 M

IL
EA

G
E 

AL
LO

W
ED

 F
O

R
 M

.S
.A

.S
. D

ES
IG

N
AT

IO
N

S 
 (C

ol
 X

I, 
Li

ne
 1

0 
Ti

m
es

 L
in

e 
11

)
 

13
.  

To
ta

l M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

ta
te

 A
id

 S
tr

ee
t D

es
ig

na
te

d 
(C

ol
um

n 
XI

I, 
Li

ne
 2

 +
 4

 +
 6

 +
 7

)

14
.  

To
ta

l M
ile

s 
of

 T
.H

. &
 C

ou
nt

y 
Tu

rn
ba

ck
s 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 a

s 
M

SA
S 

Ab
ov

e 
20

%
 (C

ol
. X

II 
Li

ne
 2

 +
 4

 +
 7

)
(-)

15
.  

M
ile

ag
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 M

SA
S 

- n
ot

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
T.

H
. a

nd
 C

ou
nt

y 
Tu

rn
ba

ck
 m

ile
ag

e 
(L

in
e 

13
 m

in
us

 L
in

e 
14

).
(-)

16
.  

M
SA

S 
M

ile
ag

e 
Pa

rt
ly

 O
ut

si
de

 th
e 

C
ity

 L
im

its
 in

 a
 n

on
 M

SA
S 

ci
ty

 (i
f a

ny
)

(-)
 

17
.  

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

ta
te

 A
id

 S
tr

ee
t M

ile
ag

e 
O

ve
r/U

nd
er

 M
ax

im
um

 A
llo

w
ed

.  
(L

in
e 

12
 m

in
us

 li
ne

 1
5 

m
in

us
 L

in
e 

16
)

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rt

ify
 th

at
 th

e 
to

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
ed

 M
ile

ag
e 

(C
ol

.X
I. 

Li
ne

 5
 +

 1
0)

 in
 th

e 
M

un
ic

ip
al

ity
 o

f S
pr

in
g 

La
ke

 P
ar

k 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
2 

 is
 3

3.
54

 M
ile

s.

Si
gn

ed
:  

Ph
il 

G
ra

ve
l  

  T
itl

e:
  C

ity
 E

ng
in

ee
r  

   
D

at
e:

  1
2/

29
/2

02
2

N
O

TE
:  

Li
ne

s 
2,

 4
, 6

, &
 7

 a
re

 M
SA

S 
m

ile
ag

e 
ca

te
go

rie
s

 S
ha

de
d 

Fi
el

ds
 c

on
ta

in
 fo

rm
ul

as
.  

Th
es

e 
fie

ld
s 

ge
t f

ille
d 

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 a

s 
da

ta
 is

 e
nt

er
ed

.

BA
SI

C 
M

IL
EA

G
E:

  M
IL

EA
G

E 
CO

NS
ID

ER
ED

 IN
 T

HE
 C

O
M

PU
TA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
AL

LO
W

AB
LE

 M
IL

EA
G

E 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 M

ile
ag

e
as

 o
f D

ec
. 3

1,
 2

02
1

  C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 2
02

2 
(+

 o
r -

)
as

 o
f D

ec
. 3

1,
 2

02
2

Total

Non-
Existing

Unimproved

20
22

Non-
Existing

Unimproved

M
un

ic
ip

al
 M

ile
ag

e
R

ev
is

io
ns

 D
ur

in
g

Improved

Non-
Existing

Unimproved

Improved

Total

Improved

 

2.
62

3.
05

3.
05

Total

M
IL

EA
G

E 
NO

T 
CO

NS
ID

ER
ED

 IN
 T

HE
 C

O
M

PU
TA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
B

AS
IC

 M
IL

EA
G

E 

5.
67

2.
62

5.
67

2.
62

3.
05

 

2.
62

3.
05

21
.7

4

0.
32

0.
32

27
.8

7

21
.7

4
21

.7
4

0.
32

 
0.

32

5.
52

5.
52

0.
29

0.
29

 

SU
BM

IT
 T

O
 Y

O
UR

 D
SA

E 
BY

 J
AN

UA
RY

 1
5,

 2
02

3

an
d 

M
ile

ag
e 

Pa
rt

ly
 O

ut
si

de
 th

e 
C

ity
 L

im
its

 in
 a

 n
on

 M
SA

S 
ci

ty
)

0.
05 

5.
52

0.
29

 

21
.7

4

27
.8

7

 

5.
81

5.
57

5.
52

5.
52

 

0.
29

0.
29



Route Original
Number Miles Non- Un- Improved Total

Existing improved

MILEAGE CHANGE + OR -

TOTAL MILEAGE CHANGE + or - insert on Line 9

REVISIONS MADE DURING 2022

TRUNK HIGHWAYS, COUNTY ROADS, or COUNTY STATE AID HIGHWAYS

LOCAL ROADS

TOTAL MILEAGE CHANGE + or - (insert on Line 2 or Line 4 or 
Line 7)

TOTAL MILEAGE CHANGE + or - (insert on Line 1, Line 3 or 
Line 8)

FOR A SHEET WITH MORE ROWS, CONTACT STATE AID

JAN. 1  TO DEC. 31, 2022 MUNICIPALITY________________________________

TURNBACK MUNICIPAL STATE AID STREETS (County Road, CSAH or TH Turnbacks)

TOTAL MILEAGE CHANGE + or - (insert on Line 6)

New Construction, System Revision, Jurisdictional Exchange, Administrative Revision, etc.

Indicate if Needs 
were updated in 

2022

Reason / notesDate of Change

MUNICIPAL STATE AID STREETS Regular Mileage 

Revised or 
New Miles



S
pr

in
g

La
ke

La
ke

La
ke

si
de

Pa
rk

W
es

tw
oo

d
Pa

rk

Tr
ia

ng
le

Pa
rk

Te
rra

ce
Pa

rk

A
bl

e
Pa

rk

Sa
nb

ur
no

l
Pa

rk

G
ro

ve
la

nd
Pa

rk

¬ 65

¬ 47

$+10

$+10

244

230

241

105

106106

1
0
1

3
1
0

244

1
0
1

109109

101

230

2
3
3

241 22
8

244

2
3
7

$+

1

$+44

$+8
$+8

$+35

$+35

241

341341

1 102 102

1
0
1

105

106

1
0
7

1
0
7

1
1
5

1
0
3

10
4

¾ÆC
O

U
N

T
Y

R
O

A
D

10
8

4

244
108108

1
0
1

1
0
3

110 110

3
0
9

Groveland Rd

CS
AH

10

CS
AH

10

MNTH 65

C
ou

n t
y

R
oa

d
I

rd
A

ve
N

E

Able St NE

M
ap

le
 S

t N
E

Vic
er

oy
 D

r N
E

Ra
lei

gh
 L

a 
NE

Ma
rlb

or
o C

t N
E

M
-3

G
ro

ve
la

nd
 C

t

University Avenue Service DR E

Cr
ow

n O
ak

s D
R 

NE

Gloria Cir

Madison St NE

UniversityAvenueServiceRDNE

Th
eo

rin
 T

er
 N

E

R
ec

o 
La

 N
E

Pa
rk

 T
E

R
 N

E

Pa
rk

 T
er

 N
E

Jackson St NE

Co
un

cil
 O

ak
s D

R 
NE

Jenki

Pri va te

R
oa

d

Laddie Pl N
E

W
yl

dw
oo

d 
La

 N
E

7
9t

h
A

ve
N

E

MNTH65

B
al

la
nt

yn
e 

La
 N

E

Red O
ak D

r

Lu
nd

A
ve

N
E

Carriage Oaks DR NE

O
ak

w
oo

d 
D

r

84
th

A
ve

N
E

De
e

Pl
NE

PrivateRoad

H
ol

la
nd

 L
a 

N
E

Pleasant View Ct

Madison St NE

Jefferson St NE

H
illv

ie
w

 R
d

83
rd

Av
e

N
E

Priva teRoad

Pri vat
e

R
o a

d

81st Dr NE

W
yl

d w
o o

d
L N

N
E

El
m

Dr
NE

Private Road

R
os

ed
al

e 
R

d 
N

E

Sh
er

w
oo

d
Pl

Sa
nb

ur
no

l D
r N

E

78
th

 C
ir

Jefferson St NE

Madison St NE

79
th

AV
E

N
E

83
rd

A
ve

N
E

Washington St NE

G

PleasantviewTownhomes

od Ter NE

Service RD

Madison St NE

85

n St NE

E Tr un
k H

igh

way 65 Service Rd

85
th

A
ve

NE

Knollwood Dr

H
illv

ie
w

 R
d

KnollwoodGRN

Gar
fie

ld
St

NE

W
es

tb
y 

D
r N

E

78
th

A
ve

N
E

Lu
n d

A
v e

N
E

Pierce St NE

Knollwood GRN

Trun
k

H
ig

h
way65ServiceRdE

Lakewood Dr NE

Priv
ate

Roa
d

Spring Lake Rd

Laddie Rd

80thAveNE

MiddletownRdNE

La
po

rt

Dr

M
ap

le
 S

t N
E

M
an

or
 D

r N
E

Pr
iv

at
e 

R
oa

d

80
th

A
ve

N
E

81
st

AV
E

N
E

Polk St NE

Tyler St NE

Taylor St NE

M
ea

do
w

m
oo

r D
r N

E

9t
h

A
ve

N
E

Mckinley St NE

Tyler St NE

Ranchers Rd NE

Lu
nd

A
v e

N
E

PL NE

6th St NE

Fairchild Ave

R
os

ed
al

e 
R

d 
N

E

Buchanan St NE

78
th

A
ve

N
E

TaylorStNE

Pleasant View Dr NE

Ha
ye

s St NE

O
sb

or
ne

 R
d 

N
E

Arthur St NE

Spring Lak
e Rd NE

UniversityAvenueServiceRD

J

83
rd

AV
E

NE

Center Dr NE

E

Lakeview La NE

N
E

Fillmore St NE

Sunset Rd NE

6th St NE

Westwood Rd NE

Rd NE

KnollwoodDr

Fairchild Ave

Spring Lake Rd NE

O
sb

or
ne

 R
d 

N
E

Io
ne

A
ve

N
E

Ba
lla

nt
yn

e 
La

 N
E

8 4
th

A
ve

N
E

Van Buren St NE

Quincy St NE

Jackson St NE
83

rd
A

ve
N

E

PleasantViewDr

CentralAVENE

CentralAveNE

80
th

A
ve

N
E

Plaza Blvd NE

5th St NE

M
an

or
 D

r N
E

8 2
n d

A
ve

N
E

Red Oak Dr

79
th

A
ve

N
E

Terrace Rd NE

Monroe St NE

81
s t

AV
E

N
E

W
UniversityServiceDR

UniversityAveNEUniversity Ave NE

4

7

S
P

R
IN

G
L

A
K

E
P

A
R

K



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Nelson and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  February 1, 2023 

Subject: Sale of Lot 4 Block 1 McKinley Manor 
 
The City has received an offer from an interested party to purchase Lot 4 Block 1, McKinley 
Manor addition.  They currently live in Mounds View and plan on building a new home on this 
lot. 
 
We will go into closed session to discuss the offer and review the purchase agreement.  The offer is 
consistent with the terms of sale of Lots 2 and 3. 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 
 
  



 



 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 



2021 2022 + / – 2021 2022 + / –

New Listings 4 1 -75.0% 124 100 -19.4%

Closed Sales 13 6 -53.8% 103 104 + 1.0%

Median Sales Price* $265,000 $280,250 + 5.8% $280,000 $296,125 + 5.8%

Average Sales Price* $275,885 $307,583 + 11.5% $281,344 $301,616 + 7.2%

Price Per Square Foot* $158 $157 -0.8% $164 $183 + 11.6%

Percent of Original List Price Received* 101.9% 94.1% -7.7% 103.5% 103.1% -0.4%

Days on Market Until Sale 15 32 + 113.3% 14 23 + 64.3%

Inventory of Homes for Sale 7 4 -42.9% -- -- --

Months Supply of Inventory 0.8 0.5 -37.5% -- -- --

Local Market Update – December 2022
 A RESEARCH TOOL PROVIDED BY THE SAINT PAUL AREA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®

- 75.0% - 53.8% + 5.8%

Year to Date

Spring Lake Park

* Does not account for seller concessions.  |  Activity for one month can sometimes look extreme due to small sample size.

** Each dot represents the change in median sales price from the prior year using a 6-month weighted average.
   This means that each of the 6 months used in a dot are proportioned according to their share of sales during that period.

Current as of January 9, 2023. All data from NorthstarMLS.  |  Copyright ShowingTime.

Change in 
New Listings

Change in
Closed Sales

Change in 
Median Sales Price

16-County Twin Cities Region

Spring Lake Park

December

- 40%

- 30%

- 20%

- 10%

0%

+ 10%

+ 20%

+ 30%

+ 40%

+ 50%

+ 60%

1-2008 1-2009 1-2010 1-2011 1-2012 1-2013 1-2014 1-2015 1-2016 1-2017 1-2018 1-2019 1-2020 1-2021 1-2022

Change in Median Sales Price from Prior Year (6-Month Average)** b

a

124

103100 104

New Listings Closed Sales

Year to Date 2021 2022

+ 1.0%-19.4%

4

13

1

6

New Listings Closed Sales

December 2021 2022

-53.8%-75.0%



1

Daniel Buchholtz

From: Saint Paul Area Association of Realtors® (SPAAR) 
<bwegscheid+spaar.com@ccsend.com>

Sent: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 4:00 PM
To: Daniel Buchholtz
Subject: Local Housing Market Update from SPAAR, December 2022

 
 

 

Good Afternoon,  
 
The Saint Paul Area Association of Realtors® (SPAAR) is a professional 
organization of over 8,100 Realtors® in 12 Minnesota counties and 200+ cities and 
townships. SPAAR is proud to have the most up-to-date housing statistics and we 
appreciate the opportunity to disseminate that information to your community. 
 
2022 was a turbulent year for the US housing market, as inflation, soaring interest 
rates, and elevated sales prices combined to cause a slowdown nationwide. 
Affordability challenges continue to limit market activity, with pending home sales 
and existing-home sales down month-over-month and falling 37.8% and 35.4% year-
over-year, respectively, according to the National Association of Realtors® (NAR). 
Higher mortgage rates are also impacting prospective sellers, many of whom have 
locked in historically low rates and have chosen to wait until market conditions 
improve before selling their home. New Listings in the Twin Cities region decreased 
11.5 percent to 2,281. Pending Sales were down 27.8 percent to 2,374. Inventory 
levels rose 16.2 percent to 5,914 units. 

 

 This message was sent from outside of the organization. Please do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
source of this email and know the content is safe.  



2

  

Prices continued to gain traction. The Median Sales Price increased 5.2 percent to 
$348,660. Days on Market was up 47.1 percent to 50 days. Buyers felt empowered 
as Months Supply of Homes for Sale was up 55.6 percent to 1.4 months. 
Economists predict sales will continue to slow and housing prices will soften in many 
markets over the next 12 months, with larger price declines projected in more 
expensive areas. However, national inventory shortages will likely keep prices from 
dropping too much, as buyer demand continues to outpace supply, which remains 
limited at 3.3 months, according to NAR. Even if prices fall, many prospective buyers 
will find it difficult to afford a home in 2023, as higher rates have diminished 
purchasing power, adding hundreds of dollars to monthly mortgage payments 
 
Your Local Market Update can be found here: 
https://spaar.stats.showingtime.com/docs/lmu/x/SpringLakePark?src=map  
 
Best regards, 
 
Becky Wegscheid 
Government Affairs Director  
Saint Paul Area Association of Realtors® 
bwegscheid@spaar.com 
Phone: 651-772-6350 

 

     

 

     

  

Saint Paul Area Association of REALTORS® | 325 Roselawn Ave E, 651-776-6000, Saint Paul, 
MN 55117  

Unsubscribe dbuchholtz@slpmn.org  

Update Profile | Constant Contact Data Notice

Sent by bwegscheid@spaar.com powered by 
 



  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
          
  
In December, a total of 56 new programs were produced utilizing 
the North Metro facilities, funds, and services.  This constitutes 
47:00:00 hours of new programming.    
 

 20 programs were produced by the public  
 33 programs were produced by NMTV staff 
 3 programs were produced by City staff 

 
 
 
  
  
The HD production truck was utilized for 11:45:00 hours of 
production in December. The following events were produced live 
and/or recorded for additional playback: 
 

 Boys Hockey: Blaine vs. Centennial 
 Boys Basketball: Andover vs. Spring Lake Park 

 
 
 

  
  
The vMix single camera production system was utilized to 
record/stream 4 events. The vMix system requires significantly fewer 
staff members than the production truck. VMix crews are spread out 
over multiple locations and connected via the internet. 
 

 Wrestling: Blaine vs. Centennial 
 Girls Hockey: Rogers vs. Blaine  
 Boys Swim & Dive: Blaine vs. Centennial 
 Centennial High School Winter Choir Concert 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Program Production 

December 2022 Update 
North Metro TV 

Van Shoots 

vMix Live Streaming Shoots 

Most Viewed YouTube 
School Event 

 
Centennial Winter Choir Concert 

548 Views 



 
 

  
 

Workshop Instructor Organization Students 
    

0 Live Workshop   0 Students 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

Workshop Type          # of Views Hours Viewed 
Batman’s Greatest Villains Mini 113 10.25 hrs 
Columbo: One More Thing  Mini 2622 349hrs 
King of the Cowboys 4 – John Wayne Mini 66 3.75 hrs 
King of the Cowboys 3 – Randolph Scott  Mini 284 21.25 hrs 
King of the Cowboys 2 – Autry/Rogers  Mini 191 10.25 hrs 
King of the Cowboys 1 – Strong and Silent  Mini 38 4.5 hrs 
Great British Game Shows  Mini 40 1.5 hrs 
We Love Lucy: The Lucille Ball Story Full 60 7.75 hrs 
The Immortal Ingrid Pitt Mini 958 40 hrs 
The Oscars: 90 Years of the Academy Awards Full 37 4.25 hrs 
Tim Curry Horror Picture Show Mini 30 1 hrs 
Back to the Eighties: The Decade’s Biggest… Full 5 1 hrs 
James Bond: 50 Years of 007 Full 10 .25 hrs 
Eurovision: A Celebration Mini NA NA 
Yabba-Dabba-Do! The Fantastic World of Hanna… Full 505 52.5 hrs 
Superman: The Man of Steel on the Silver Screen Full NA NA 
The Fantastic Four on the Silver Screen Mini NA NA 
Christmas in Hollywood Full 10 .25 hrs 
TV’s Greatest Christmas Specials Full 92 8.5 hrs 
Chicago Christmas Classics Mini 6773 338.5 hrs 
Let’s Go Ghostbusters: Filmation’s Haunted Heroes Mini NA NA 
Monster Movies of the 40s and 50s Full 270 18 hrs 
Monster Movies of the 20s and 30s Full 13 .25 hrs 
The Presidency on Film JQA to JFK Full NA NA 
Monstervision: The Legend of Joe Bob Briggs Mini 12 .5 hrs 
The Cult of Caroline Munro Mini 2501 83.25 hrs 
The Marilyn Monroe Story Full NA NA 
Nick at Nite: A TV Viewer’s Dream Mini 30 .75 hrs 
The Birth of Animation: Mickey, Bugs, and Betty... Full 10 1.25 hrs 
Hollywood Goes to War: World War II Full 51 5 hrs 
Come on Down: Game Shows of the 70s and 80s Full 50 2 hrs 
The Quiz Show Scandals and Other Game Shows… Full 250 113.5 hrs 
The Three Stooges: Comedy’s Heavy Hitters Full NA NA 
The Marx Brothers: Groucho, Harpo, Chico… Full 59 4 hrs 
Mary Pickford: The World’s First Movie Star Full NA NA 
Hollywood Goes to the Dogs: Lassie, Benji… Full 9 1 hrs 

36 VOD Workshops  13,089 Total 
Views 

1,084 Hours 
Viewed 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

VOD Workshop Views 

Live Workshops 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Month Viewers Videos 
Viewed 

Hours 
Watched 

New Sub-
scribers 

Total 
Impressions 

January 18,800 28,923 2,355 74 459,857 
February 18,312 29,142 2,382 29 448,149 

March 19,378 29,639 1,981.50 49 463,807 
April 18,750 26,754 1,631.5 48 365,914 
May 20,925 30,788 2,215.25 68 444,612 
June 21,792 34,138 3,073 104 382,258 
July 21,999 32,663 2,252 50 346,531 

August 47,542 59,753 2,281 61 394,342 
September  25,107 44,813 6,611 223 432,853 

October  30,304 46,767 4,502.5 196 460,186 
November 33,620 38,825 2,194 93 418,215 
December 30,388 35,598 1,915 142 417,251 
TOTAL:  306,917 437,803 33,394.25 1,137 5,033,975 

 
 
 
  
 
 

Month Number of 
Users 

Number of Views Live Stream 
Views 

January 4,665 6,102 1,681 
February 4,121 10,999 1,945 

March 5,916 11,617 976 
April 10,913 16,299 611 
May 13,815 15,970 1,030 
June 5,440 10,253 1,040 
July 8,900 14,724 948 

August 7,291 13,460 667 
September 7,996 20,346 4,185 

October 9,084 23,273 3,562 
November 10,117 12,469 1,733 
December 5,178 10,208 1,285 
TOTAL:  93,436 165,720 19,663 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

YouTube Stats 

NMTV Website Stats 

Most Viewed YouTube 
Workshop 

 
Chicago Christmas Classics 

6,773 Views 



 
 
  
 
Home movie transfers have become one of our most popular services.  Residents can transfer 
their family videos themselves for free, or pay NMTV to do it.  NMTV can also transfer film, slides, 
and photos for a fee.    
 

Month Hours 
Transferred 

Tapes Film 
Reels 

DVDs Photos/
Slides 

Fees Paid 

January 327.5 141 8 58 75 $878.44 
February 262.2 36 85 10 0 $2,028.95 

March 249.75 46 79 10 603 $1,560.82 
April 359.75 104 34 24 100 $1,947.54 
May 339.5 116 36 2 215 $1,482.63 
June 96.5 24 8 0 0 $592.42 
July 303.75 51 100 0 939 $1,678.66 

August 332 52 118 0 149 $2,112.53 
September 364.5 103 22 5 726 $1,767.59 

October 326 69 16 0 998 $1,538.34 
November 262.75 65 47 0 0 $1,081.98 
December 157.75 37 43 0 0 $1,639.04 
TOTAL: 3,382 844 596 109 3,805 $18,308.94 

 
 
 
 
  
 
NMTV News Highlights 
Each week Danika Peterson and Eric Nelson 
create a news program that highlights events, 
people, issues, and information important to 
citizens of our Member Cities.  Some December 
highlights include:  
 

 Barno Family Lights Light Up Circle Pines 
 Digitizing History with the Anoka County 

Historical Society 
 Apartment Proposals in Blaine Draw 

Scrutiny from Neighborhood 
 Ice Advice: DNR Tips for Going on a 

Frozen Lake 
 Spire Credit Union in Blaine is Collecting Toys for the Holiday 
 Gas Prices Dropping in Anoka County 
 Pickleball Comes to National Sports Center 
 North Central Branch Library in Ham Lake Reopens after a Remodel 
 Minnesota Moose: A Local Team Giving Back 
 Local Legislator Makes Push for Passenger Rail to Duluth 
 SBM Fire Department Welcomes Dan Retka as New Chief 
 Prioritizing Health During the Holidays 
 Spring Lake Park High School Students Face the “Shark Tank” 
 Wes Hovland Retires from Blaine City Council 
 Rookery Activity Center in Lino Lakes is Warm Year-round 
 Blaine Lands $4M in Federal Funding to Help Rebuild Highway 65 
 Dome at National Sport Center Provides Winter Baseball Training Opportunities 
 NSC’s Dome Keeps Flag Football Players Warm 
  
 

In addition to daily playbacks of North Metro TV News on the cable systems, there are 1,167local 
stories archived for viewers on the NMTV YouTube channel.  The channel can be accessed 
through the northmetrotv.com website. 
 
 
 

Production Highlights 

Home Movie Transfers 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Arrive Alive Update 
Special Events Coordinator, T.J. Tronson, continues to prepare for 
this year’s Arrive Alive event.  He has been meeting with Dani 
Anderson of Centennial High School and Emily Douglas, with the 
Blaine Police Department to work out the details.  The show will be 
made up of five scenes and the final funeral presentation.  Some of 
the scenes will be shot in late February or early March, with the 
main event taking place on April 17th and 18th.  It’s a very labor 
intensive project that requires a lot of planning and preparation.      

 
New City Programming 
Municipal Coordinator, Trevor Scholl, is working to develop 
new programming for the city channels. Get Connected with 
Anoka County is an older series idea that is getting a reboot. It 
showcases local organizations, events and businesses.  The 
newest episode looks at Lino Lakes’ new Rookery Activity 
Center and the opportunities that the Center provides.  The 
second show will be a recurring segment that highlights public 
safety employees who work for our member cities.  New 
episodes of each show have been produced and are available 
on the NMTV YouTube page and the city channels.  
 
MN Media Archive Update  
Studio Manager, Eric Houston continued to develop and 
add media to the newly launched MN Media Archive, which 
is a YouTube channel designed to host older videos the 
public may find exciting to revisit.  Figuring out the workflow 
and ironing out bugs has been the focus this month.  So far 
12 NMTV videos have been posted with dozens more being 
processed.  Eric will use the winter to build up a substantial 
library of videos, then in the Spring he will begin reaching 
out to schools,  local governments, alumni groups, and 
booster clubs to interest them in contributing videos.  
Anyone who would like to have their videos displayed on the channel will be asked to pay a 
digitizing fee.  The videos could include sports, parades, graduations and other events.  We will 
also be using the channel to promote our Home Movie transfer service by tagging all the content 
we post with a promo.   
 
NMTV Strategic Plan 
Work was completed on a three year strategic plan for North Metro TV.  Priorities include 
diversifying income, determining desired services and staffing, and preparing for a leadership 
transition.    
    
 
 
 
 
 
     

Most Viewed YouTube  
News Story 

 
Spire Credit Union in Blaine is Collecting 

Toys for the Holiday 
584 Views 



City Productions 
In December, Municipal Producer, Trevor 
Scholl, completed one production. It was the 
first, in what he plans to be a series of shows, 
about the Rookery.   He also did a lot of 
legwork for another series highlighting public 
safety employees. Completed programs 
include: 
 

 Get Connected With Anoka County: 
Rookery Activity Center 

 
New and ongoing projects include: 
 

 Winter Mayor’s Minutes 
 Lino Lakes curb recycling promo 
 Business profiles 
 Public safety employee profiles 
 Blaine Facebook live town halls 

 
Trevor touches base with contacts on a regular basis and also encourages Cities to contact him 
with ideas for new videos.    
 
 
 
 
 

Title Producer Runtime 
MN Heals (3 episodes) Lorrie Henderson  01:48:12 

Rice Creek Watershed District Meeting  Theresa Stasica 00:43:44 
Christ Lutheran Church Worship (8 

episodes) 
Chance Amundson 05:21:35 

Lovepower (2 episodes) Rick Larson 02:00:00 
The Power of Love (2 episodes) Rick Larson 01:00:00 
Oak Park Community Church (4 

episodes) 
David Turnidge 02:17:58 

20 New Programs  13:11:29 New Hours 
 
 
 
 
 

Title Producer Runtime 
Anoka County Board Meeting (12/2/22) T.J. Tronson 01:01:54 
Anoka County Board Meeting (12/13/22) T.J. Tronson 01:43:57 

North Metro Telecommunications 
Commission Meeting (12/29/22) 

T.J. Tronson 00:15:39 

NMTV News (3 episodes) Danika Peterson/Eric 
Nelson 

00:59:41 

SBM Fire Welcomes New Chief Danika Peterson/Eric 
Nelson 

00:01:57 

Digitizing History at the Anoka County 
Historical Society 

Danika Peterson/Eric 
Nelson 

00:04:09 

Barno Family Lights Light Up Circle Pines Danika Peterson/Eric 
Nelson 

00:02:42 

Get Connected With Anoka County: 
Rookery Activity Center 

Trevor Scholl 00:09:07 

Boys Hockey: Blaine/Centennial Kenton Kipp/Ted Leroux 01:24:21 
Boys Basketball: Andover/Spring Lake 

Park 
Kenton Kipp/Ted Leroux 01:19:06 

Wrestling: Blaine/Centennial Kenton Kipp/Ted Leroux 01:27:03 
Girls Hockey: Rogers/Blaine Kenton Kipp/Ted Leroux 01:32:29 

Boys Swim & Dive: Blaine/Centennial Kenton Kipp/Ted Leroux 01:09:17 
Centennial High School Winter Choir Kenton Kipp/Ted Leroux 01:57:27 

Public Access Programs 

NMTV Staff Programs 



Concert 
Sports Den (2 episodes) Kenton Kipp/Ted Leroux 00:37:24 

18 New Programs  13:46:23 New Hours 
 
 
 
 
 

Title Producer Runtime 
Blaine City Council Meeting (12/5/22) T.J. Tronson 02:30:12 

Blaine Truth In Taxation Meeting 
(12/12/22) 

T.J. Tronson 00:26:08 

Blaine Planning Commission Meeting 
(12/13/22) 

T.J. Tronson 01:08:58 

Blaine City Council Meeting (12/19/22) Trevor Scholl 02:38:36 
Centerville Planning & Zoning Meeting 

(12/6/22) 
John Murphy 01:26:27 

Centerville Park & Rec Meeting (12/7/22) John Murphy 01:01:44 
Centerville City Council Meeting 

(12/14/22) 
Teresa Bender 01:57:18 

Centerville EDA Meeting (12/28/22) John Murphy 00:51:17 
Circle Pines City Council Meeting 

(12/13/22) 
Patrick Willson 01:07:24 

Circle Pines Planning Commission 
Meeting (12/19/22) 

Patrick Willson 01:03:58 

Circle Pines Utility Commission Meeting 
(12/21/22) 

Eric Houston 00:21:24 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (12/5/22) Ray Campos 01:03:05 
Ham Lake City Council Meeting 

(12/19/22) 
Patrick Willson 01:06:57 

Lexington City Council Meeting (12/1/22) Lexington Staff 00:24:38 
Lexington City Council Meeting 

(12/15/22) 
Lexington Staff 00:08:31 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting 
(12/12/22) 

Anne Serwe 00:56:50 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(12/5/22) 

Eric Houston 01:05:02 
 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(12/19/22) 

Ray Flint 
 

00:54:46 

18 New Programs  20:13:15  New Hours 
 

If you have any questions or comments regarding this monthly report please contact Heidi Arnson 
at 763.231.2801 or harnson@northmetrotv.com. 

City Meetings 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
       
 
Municipal Producer, Trevor Scholl, completed one production in December, and started 
work on another show, which will be recurring. Get Connected With Anoka County, 
which features Lino Lakes’ Rookery Activity Center was completed, with a new episode 
in production quarterly. He is also wrapping up production on the first episode of a 
segment highlighting city public safety employees.  Programs were also produced by T.J. 
Tronson, Danika Peterson, and Eric Nelson for the city channels.  Trevor reaches out to 
city officials and department contacts, every month, regarding potential programming for 
the channels.  City staff and elected officials are encouraged to contact Trevor with any 
ideas or requests for programming. 
 
 
 

Title Producer Runtime 
Get Connected With Anoka County: 

Rookery Activity Center 
Trevor Scholl 00:09:07 

SBM Fire Welcomes New Chief Danika Peterson/Eric Nelson 00:01:57 

Digitizing History at the Anoka County 
Historical Society 

Danika Peterson/Eric Nelson 00:04:09 

Barno Family Lights Light Up Circle Pines Danika Peterson/Eric Nelson 00:02:42 

North Metro Telecommunications 
Commission Meeting (12/29/22) 

T.J. Tronson 00:15:39 

Anoka County Board Meeting (12/2/22) T.J. Tronson 01:01:54 

Anoka County Board Meeting (12/13/22) T.J. Tronson 01:43:57 
 

 
Some projects that Trevor is working on or is scheduled to produce include: 
 
 Winter Mayor’s Minutes 
 Lino Lakes curb recycling promo 
 Business profiles 
 Public safety employee profiles 
 Blaine Facebook live town halls 

 
 
  
 
 
 Blaine 

December 2022 
 

CCIITTYY  REPORT  

Equipment Consulting/Technical Support 

blaine centerville circle pines ham lake lexington lino lakes spring lake park

▪ December Completed Videos/Playing on City Cable Channels & Streaming 

Video Production 



 No assistance required.  
 Centerville  
 No assistance required.  

 
Circle Pines  

 No assistance required.  
 Ham Lake  
 12.1.22: Issues with one of the TVs on the dais. Switched out the power supplies 

and the TVs are working again. 
 Lexington  
 No assistance required.  

 Lino Lakes  
 No assistance required.  

Spring Lake Park   
 No assistance required.  

 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
Programming Coordinator, Michele Silvester, along with help from Eric Houston, and 
Trevor Scholl, is responsible for processing and scheduling the programming on the City 
channels.  There are three categories of programs that are scheduled on the City channels; 
live and replayed meetings, NMTV staff created video content, and informational 
graphics pages.  All categories of programming must be encoded, scheduled, and entered 
into the Tightrope playback system or entered into the Carousel video files.  As each live 
meeting is being recorded at City Hall, it is routed to the North Metro TV head-end and 
then sent out over the cable system live. At the same time it is also encoded on a server 
for future playbacks.  The following meetings were processed in December: 
 

Title Producer Runtime 
Blaine City Council Meeting (12/5/22) T.J. Tronson 02:30:12 

Blaine Truth In Taxation Meeting (12/12/22) T.J. Tronson 00:26:08 

Blaine Planning Commission Meeting 
(12/13/22) 

T.J. Tronson 01:08:58 

Blaine City Council Meeting (12/19/22) Trevor Scholl 02:38:36 

Centerville Planning & Zoning Meeting 
(12/6/22) 

John Murphy 01:26:27 

Centerville Park & Rec Meeting (12/7/22) John Murphy 01:01:44 

Centerville City Council Meeting (12/14/22) Teresa Bender 01:57:18 

Centerville EDA Meeting (12/28/22) John Murphy 00:51:17 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting 
(12/13/22) 

Patrick Willson 01:07:24 

Circle Pines Planning Commission Meeting 
(12/19/22) 

Patrick Willson 01:03:58 

Circle Pines Utility Commission Meeting 
(12/21/22) 

Eric Houston 00:21:24 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (12/5/22) Ray Campos 01:03:05 

Channel Management 



Ham Lake City Council Meeting (12/19/22) Patrick Willson 01:06:57 

Lexington City Council Meeting (12/1/22) Lexington Staff 00:24:38 

Lexington City Council Meeting (12/15/22) Lexington Staff 00:08:31 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting (12/12/22) Anne Serwe 00:56:50 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(12/5/22) 

Eric Houston 01:05:02 
 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(12/19/22) 

Ray Flint 
 

00:54:46 

18 New Programs  20:13:15  New Hours 

 
 
Meetings are scheduled for replay based on schedules requested by each City. Additional 
longer-length video programming, produced by NMTV staff, is also scheduled on the 
channels.  With the arrival of the Carousel units, shorter-length videos and promos are 
loaded onto those devices, rather than being scheduled as separate playbacks.  The short 
videos cycle through, with graphics pages, and play on the channels whenever a 
scheduled program is not playing.  Depending on whether a City selected the split screen 
or full screen Carousel option, the shorter videos are cycling 24 hours a day.  The table 
below outlines how many times a longer-length video program was entered into the 
Tightrope system, and played back on each City channel. 
 

City Number of Times 
Programs Played 

Hours Programmed 
on Channel 

Blaine  259 429:02:58 

Centerville 87 106:34:24 

Circle Pines 177 192:58:01 

Ham Lake 77 70:03:38 

Lexington 157 52:12:57 

Lino Lakes 90 73:49:26 

Spring Lake Park 151 128:32:16 

Totals: 998 Program Playbacks 1,053:13:40 Hours of 
Video Programming on 

Channels 

 
The last category of programming on City channels consists of bulletin board, or graphics 
pages, that display information about the City or about events and issues of interest to 
citizens.  With the installation of the Carousel units, Eric Houston has assumed 
responsibility for updating the information on all seven channels.  He works closely with 
each City's representative to ensure that all requested data slides are created and posted to 
the satisfaction of the City.  Even though Eric is doing the work of creating the data 
pages, the Cities maintain editorial control.  In addition to the graphics pages, the 
Carousel units play video.  Trevor Scholl is responsible for encoding any short videos 
that are displayed. The following work was done for City Carousel units in December: 
 
 Blaine 
 Transcoded and uploaded 2 videos to Carousel. 

Centerville 
 Transcoded and uploaded 1 video to Carousel. 
 Created 1 new Carousel slide.  



 Circle Pines  
 Transcoded and uploaded 3 videos to Carousel. 

 Ham Lake  
 Transcoded and uploaded 1 videos to Carousel. 

 Lexington  
 Transcoded and uploaded 3 videos to Carousel. 

 Lino Lakes  
 Transcoded and uploaded 3 video to Carousel. 

 Spring Lake Park 
 Transcoded and uploaded 2 videos to Carousel.  
 Created 3 new Carousel slides. 

 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
NMTV has created a video on demand service, with line-item bookmarking, for our 
Cities' meetings.  In order to accomplish this, each encoded meeting has to undergo 
several steps.  The meeting must first be transferred and transcoded from the playback 
server to the video on demand server.  Once that is done, a staff member must go through 
the meeting entering a bookmark at the start of each meeting line-item, and enter the 
corresponding line-item information. Next, the meeting is linked to the NMTV website's 
city meeting page for video on demand. The following number of meetings were 
bookmarked and/or placed on VOD for the Cities in December: 
 
 Blaine 
 4 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Centerville  
 4 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD.  

 Circle Pines  
 3 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Ham Lake  
 2 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Lexington  
 2 meeting placed on VOD. 

 Lino Lakes  
 1 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD.  

 Spring Lake Park  
 2 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD 

 
 
 
   
 
 
Issues dealt with in December include finalizing work with Dan Tesch on the pay 
study, presenting the Strategic Plan, and working with the City of Blaine to request 
ARP funds.  
 

Pay Study 
 12.5.22: Talked with Dan Tesch. Answered his questions regarding current step 

pay ranges. 

Meetings on Demand 

Administrative 



 12.13.22: Talked with Dan Tesch. Answered his questions regarding job titles. 
Sent him all current job titles.  

 
Strategic Plan 

 Presented plan to Operations Committee 
 

Request ARP Funds 
 Learned that NMTV was approved for $10,000 of ARP funds from the City of 

Blaine. 
 Sent request for funds to Joe Huss. 
 Received funds.  Thank you very much! 

 
 Miscellaneous  
 Answered questions from Commissioner Stoesz regarding Commission members 

for 2023. 
 Referred Commissioner Stoesz to staff for information regarding Home Movie 

Transfers. 
 Create 2023 meeting schedule. 
 Attended eNATOA seminar: The Courts, the Hill, and the FCC. 
 Did self evaluation for annual review. 
 Had annual performance review. 
 Re-scheduled and coordinated cable commission meeting due to very bad 

weather.  
 Received and documented monthly Comcast subscriber reports. 
 Read December Legal Report.  
 Read industry articles.  

 



































































  

 

Date: January 11, 2023 

To: MCES Customer Communities 

Re:  2022 Annual Update on the East Bethel Water Reclamation Facility 

I am writing today to provide an annual update to MCES customers on the East Bethel Water 
Reclamation Facility, which serves East Bethel, treating 60,000 gallons per day of wastewater.   
I am pleased to report that the plant has consistently met the requirements for the Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency’s highest level reuse water quality since September 2020, and there have been  
no observed negative impacts on the surficial groundwater. 

The attached fact sheet provides an overview of the East Bethel Water Reclamation Facility and details 
our treatment process.  

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please contact: 

• Colton Janes, Business Unit Manager, 651.602.4915 
• Karla Karls, Assistant Business Unit Manager, 651.602.8763 

Thank you for your continued partnership as we work to create clean water for future generations. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Ned Smith, Director 
Pretreatment and Finance 

 

 

 

Metropolitan Council (Regional Office & Environmental Services) 
390 Robert Street North, Saint Paul, MN 55101-1805 
P 651.602.1000 | F 651.602.1550 | TTY 651.291.0904 
metrocouncil.org 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 



EAST BETHEL WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY
18460 Buchanan St. NE, East Bethel, Minnesota, 55011

Facility Information
Type: Membrane bioreactor with ultraviolet disinfection
Design Capacity: 410,000 gallons per day
Discharges to: Land application basin
Current Communities Served: 1 (East Bethel)
2040 Projected Population Served: 7,380 people
Began Operations: August 2014

East Bethel Water Reclamation 
Facility has achieved the 
Minnesota Pollution Control 
Agency’s highest-level 
requirements for reuse of treated 
water with no negative impacts.

Land Application Basin

KLONDIKE DR NE

VIKING BLVD NE

189TH AVE NE

221ST AVE NE

65

229TH AVE NE

Neds Lake

De
er

 La
ke

Mud Lake

Coon Lake
Land 
Application 
Site

Water 
Reclamation 
Plant Site

Reclaimed 
Water 
Alignment

Interceptor 
Alignment

B
U

C
H

A
N

A
N

 ST N
E

N

Water Reclamation Service Area



East Bethel Wastewater Treatment and Distribution Process

Reclaimed Water Distribution

Treatment Process

Symbol

Main Flow Path

Abbreviations MBR: membrane bioreactor UV: ultraviolet light disinfection WAS: waste activated sludge

Learn more
For more information please contact:

Colton Janes, Business Unit Manager
Phone: 651.602.4915

Karla Karls, Assistant Business Unit Manager
Phone: 651.602.8763

MCES Mission
We partner, plan, and provide servies to 
protect our region’s water.























• There are more questions about the economic backdrop to begin 2023 compared 
to a year ago. This is despite the near-term positive economic tone we see to 
begin January.

• The Golden Age of Public Finance will continue into 2023, but there are threats, 
some developing others already entrenched, stressing public finance sectors.  

• We are lowering our State Government outlook to “Stable” from “Positive.” We 
are not expecting credit deterioration, we simply believe most upgrades have 
occurred already.

• Our Local Government sector outlook remains “Positive.” We believe public finance 
rating upgrades will outpace downgrades in 2023 and many of those upgrades 
will occur in this sector.

• Healthy state balance sheets should keep K-12 funding steady even if recessionary 
conditions develop. We are watching legacy liabilities, operational and workforce 
factors closely in the School District sector as well.

• Passenger enplanements are recovering but, labor and capacity constraints, 
combined with the potential for a softening economy could moderate the Airport 
sector’s revival.

• Charter Schools have benefitted from increased enrollment and revenues which 
have muted the impact of expense pressures allowing for generally stable financial 
operations.

HilltopSecurities Municipal Sector Credit Outlooks

Sector
Hilltop Credit 

Outlook 
Jan. 2023 HTS 

Action(s) 
Key Sector Trends

State Government Stable Lowered to Stable Total balances remain near record levels, most states can withstand a recession

Local Government Positive None Healthy reserves, concerned some credits are not preparing for financial reality

School Districts Positive None Reserves are healthy here too, fiscal balance also needed

Airports Stable None Enplanements bouncing back with a “permanent structural change” 

Charter Schools Stable Initial outlook Charters maintained COVID-19 enrollment gains

Community Facilities Districts Stable Initial outlook California property values will support the state’s CFDs market

Health Care (inv. grade) Negative None Fiscal strain, consolidations, partnerships & affiliations still occurring

Health Care (sub-inv. grd, NR) Negative Initial outlook Same backdrop as above, less resources

Higher Education
Public: Cautious
Private: Negative  

None
Forecast expects the number of high school grads to drop off starting in 2025, 

healthy state coffers provide a near-term boost to public entities

Housing Stable Lowered to Stable Fiscal momentum is slowing and issuance is expected to drop

Public Power (Elec.) Stable None Good cash position and coverage ratios are under pressure

Senior Living Negative Initial outlook We expect more and greater operating headwinds in the medium-term

Tobacco Negative None More downside risk b/c of government policy and declining tobacco usage

Toll Facilities Stable None Vehicle miles traveled are recovering, watching economic growth 

Water & Sewer Stable None Essentiality remains a factor but fiscal pressures are building

Source: HilltopSecurities.

The Municipal Market in 2023,
Hilltop’s Municipal Sector Credit Outlooks

Please see disclosure starting on page 20.

U.S. Municipal Bond Market

Municipal Commentary

Page 1

January 17, 2023

Ted Chapman
ted.chapman@hilltopsecurities.com
214.859.1067

Tom Kozlik
tom.kozlik@hilltopsecurities.com
214.859.9439

Doug Nelson
doug.nelson@hilltopsecurities.com
818.212.2048

Yaffa Rattner
yaffa.rattner@hilltopsecurities.com
214.859.9883

Phil Villaluz 
philip.villaluz@hilltopsecurities.com
321.788.6488



Municipal Commentary

Page 2

There is optimism about the 
trajectory of the U.S. economy to 
begin 2023. There is still a chance, 
albeit a small one, that a soft landing 
for the U.S. economy is achieved. 

Fed officials may be favoring a 
slowdown in the magnitude of rate 
hikes, but the rate hikes are likely to 
continue. 

Last week the first negative consumer 
price index data in 32 months 
reported that inflation may be 
easing, please see Markets Signal 
Smaller Rate Hike in Feb on Negative 
CPI Reading. 

• Our initial “Stable” outlook for the Community Facilities District sector is 
concentrated on activity in California, where property values remain relatively 
stable and housing demand endures.

• The investment grade Health Care sector was experiencing fiscal pressures 
before the COVID crisis, and those pressures are likely to continue into 2023 and 
the near-term. 

• Sub and non-investment grade Health Care entities are more vulnerable to 
expense pressures given little revenue flexibility and generally less liquidity.

• Sluggish operating revenue growth, declining student enrollment, changing 
consumer preferences, along with heightened inflationary & cost pressures 
challenge Higher Education.

• We lowered our Housing sector outlook to “Stable” from “Positive,” because of a 
slowdown in activity. Downgrades are not likely in the sector. Margins will remain 
healthy. 

• The Public Power sector’s cash position and metrics are under pressure from rising 
costs.

• Senior Living expenses have been pressured by wage and food increases while 
rental rate increases have been more muted resulting in margin compression and 
thus our “Negative” outlook.

• The Tobacco securitization sector continues to experience consumption declines 
and event risk.  

• Toll Facilities activity is rebounding and we expect the recovery to be supported 
by stable-to-growing commercial vehicle traffic and a steady return of passenger 
travel.

• Water and Sewer sector: Though an essential service, the rate of increase in 
consumers’ water bills has outstripped that of comparable services, personal real 
income and inflation for decades.

The Economic Backdrop
There is optimism about the trajectory of the U.S. economy to begin 2023. There is still a 
chance, albeit a small one, that a soft landing for the U.S. economy is achieved. However, 
just because the year is beginning on a more optimistic tone, it does not mean that is 
how 2023 is going to finish. The tone to begin 2022 was rather positive as well. Why has 
the outlook in January 2023 strengthened? Hilltop’s Scott McIntyre and Greg Warner 
have recently reviewed why some of the latest economic data could support less Federal 
Reserve action in the near-term. We should keep in mind that the Fed wants to control 
consumer demand, slow job growth and manage wage inflation. The December non-
farm payroll result could be supporting part of the Fed’s aim. “U.S. businesses added the 
fewest jobs to company payrolls in two years,” according to Markets Rally Big on Slower 
Wage Gains. And last week the first negative consumer price index data in 32 months 
reported that inflation may be easing, please see Markets Signal Smaller Rate Hike in Feb 
on Negative CPI Reading. 

Fed officials may be favoring a slowdown in the magnitude of rate hikes, but the rate 
hikes are likely to continue. At the end of 2022 many were expecting the Fed was going 
to raise its target rate by 50 basis points at the conclusion of its Feb. 1 meeting and 
another 25 basis points on March 22. Now, many believe that level of activity could be 
excessive. Target rate increases are still expected at the upcoming meetings, it's just 

https://www.reuters.com/markets/us/fed-seen-delivering-quarter-point-hike-next-month-inflation-slows-2023-01-12/
https://www.reuters.com/markets/us/fed-seen-delivering-quarter-point-hike-next-month-inflation-slows-2023-01-12/
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/01/economic-commentary_01.12.2023.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/01/economic-commentary_01.12.2023.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/01/economic-commentary_01.12.2023.pdf
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2023-01-12/world-economy-walks-tightrope-between-recession-and-soft-landing?sref=0P2L4g2B
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/01/economic-commentary_01.06.2023.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/01/economic-commentary_01.06.2023.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/01/economic-commentary_01.12.2023.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/01/economic-commentary_01.12.2023.pdf
https://www.reuters.com/markets/us/fed-seen-delivering-quarter-point-hike-next-month-inflation-slows-2023-01-12/


Municipal Commentary

Page 3

We anticipate issuance activity will 
remained challenged again in 2023. 
Interest rates are likely to remain 
high, and we forecast $350 billion of 
municipal bond issuance for 2023.

A key story to follow in 2023 will be 
how it is that public finance entities 
who have mostly benefitted from 
the sugar rush of massive federal 
government COVID-19 aid will adjust 
in coming years. 

A new financial reality is again 
developing across the U.S. Many 
public finance entities are in the 
midst of adjusting to the new reality. 

that the escalations won’t be as high as anticipated. According to the Fed’s December 
statement, their expected median peak rate is around 5.00% for the rest of 2023, and the 
dot plot shows there could be rate cuts of 100 basis points in both 2024 and 2025. 

Examining Themes We Expect Will Impact Public Finance  
Federal Reserve activity significantly impacted public finance in 2022. Primary market 
municipal bond issuance fell by about 20% year-over-year. Refunding issuance collapsed 
because of higher interest rates. We anticipate issuance activity will remained challenged 
again in 2023. Interest rates are likely to remain high, and we forecast $350 billion of 
municipal bond issuance for 2023.

The public finance community and organizations that participate in the municipal 
bond market often react to financial occurrences in bespoke ways. A new financial 
reality is again developing across the U.S. Many public finance entities are in the midst 
of adjusting to the new reality. There are major themes like the course of the Federal 
Reserve’s actions, the direction of interest rates, pace of economic growth/decline, rate 
of inflation, and international events that are all helping to chart the near-term course in 
the new year. There are also topics that are public finance specific such as: the evolving 
relationships between the federal, state, and local levels of government, the need for 
higher taxes and fees to balance budgets, the question of who will pay for the higher 
taxes and fees, the pros and cons of hybrid work (likely to heavily influence public 
finance) and required infrastructure upgrades (still) are among the issues we are tracking 
to begin the year. There is an interconnectedness among many if not all these themes. 
They all impact public finance and the sectors within public finance a little differently. 
It is often said that there are important nuances in public finance. These relationships, 
these nuances, are what we hope to flush out for readers and observers in this year’s 
Municipal Sector Credit Outlook summary.

A key story to follow in 2023 will be how it is that public finance entities who have 
mostly benefitted from the sugar-rush of massive federal government COVID-19 aid will 
adjust in coming years. Treasury Secretary Janet Yellen indicated that the significant level 
of public finance focused aid helped to correct a post-Great Recession era policy error. 
No matter the reason for the enhancement, we cannot deny the super credit positive 
backdrop the federal largess produced. The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 was a 
game changer for public finance. We indicated a Golden Age of Public Finance was to 
follow after the American Rescue Plan was initially approved in March of 2021. A Golden 
Age did follow. In 2021 public finance (per Moody’s) ratings upgrades soundly outpaced 
downgrades 817 to 307. Upgrades again outpaces downgrades through the first three 
quarters of 2022, 322 to 91. During both periods tax-backed credits received the majority 
of the upgrades, because federal aid was skewed to the positive in the state, local 
government and school district sectors.

https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/11/municipal-commentary_11.1.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/12/economic-commentary_12.14.2022.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/12/economic-commentary_12.14.2022.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/11/municipal-commentary_11.1.22.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/news/press-releases/jy0169
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/08/municipal-commentary_31921-v2.pdf


Municipal Commentary

Page 4

The Golden Age of Public Finance 
is making the numbers look good 
for now, but we are going to be 
watching closely in 2023 to see how 
public finance entities in all sectors 
adjust to the new financial reality.

Public Finance Upgrades Have Outpaced Downgrades in the Golden Age

517

296

817

322

-255

-309

-307

-91

-1,000

-800

-600

-400

-200

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1989 1992 1995 1998 2001 2004 2007 2010 2013 2016 2019 2022

Moody's Public Finance Upgrades (#) Moody's Public Finance Downgrades (#)

Upgrades (817) outnumbered downgrades (307) in 2021, and so far in 2022 through 3Q  

Public finance sector downgrades outpaced upgrades from 
2009-2014

Source: Moody’s and HilltopSecurities.

We described the current situation as a sugar-rush because it is only temporary. This 
support will only be here in the short-term. Federal government resources like this will 
not be the ongoing reality. Eventually, or should we say soon, public finance entities at 
the state and local level especially will need to adjust spending patterns to the new post-
COVID-19 financial reality. The Golden Age of Public Finance is making the numbers look 
good for now, but we are going to be watching closely in 2023 to see how public finance 
entities in all sectors adjust to the new financial reality.



Municipal Commentary

Page 5

U.S. state credit quality remains 
very strong and state government 
finances are well positioned to 
withstand near-term inflationary 
pressures and a recession should one 
develop. 

We did lower our State sector outlook 
to “Stable” down from “Positive.” 
This is not because we expect credit 
deterioration, it is because we believe 
most of the rating upgrades that are 
likely to occur in the state sector have 
already happened. 

We remain concerned about the 
rising federal share of state revenue.

U.S. State Government Sector
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Stable”
Recent Change: Lowered to “Stable” from “Positive” in this analysis.
Author: Tom Kozlik

U.S. state credit quality remains very strong and state government finances are well 
positioned to withstand near-term inflationary pressures and a recession should one 
develop. A key reason state government credit quality is largely solid is because of the 
almost $200 billion in direct unencumbered aid that flowed to states as part of the 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. Sector total balances (which include rainy day funds 
and general fund ending balances) remain at very healthy levels according to National 
Association of State Budget Officers data. For fiscal year 2022 total balances climbed to 
$343 billion because of federal aid and higher than expected revenue collections. Total 
balances are expected to remain relatively high but fall year-over-year according to the 
NASBO fiscal year 2023 projections even though states are planning to spend down a 
portion of their balances and anticipating lower levels of revenue. We remain concerned 
about the rising federal share of state revenue.

We did lower our State sector outlook to “Stable” down from “Positive.” This is not because 
we expect credit deterioration, it is because we believe most of the rating upgrades that 
are likely to occur in the state sector have already happened. We reviewed how the U.S. 
state ratings distribution shifted higher after COVID-19 in State Credit Mainly Improved 
& Most Positioned to Withstand a Recession (Dec. 6, 2022). Most states are positioned 
to withstand a moderate recession largely because of their surpluses. Moody’s Analytics 
projects that seven states, Illinois (-18.7%), Alaska (-16.4), Arizona (-13.3%), Mississippi 
(-10.9%), New Hampshire (-10.2%), Pennsylvania (-8.4%), and Maine (-8.1%) will possess 
budget shortfalls after a moderate recession shock. 

U.S. State Governments Still Maintain Very Healthy Total Balances in Reserve

12%

32%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020 2022

Total Balances, $ in billions (left)

Average 2006-2020 Total Balances, % of Exp.
(right)

Total Balances, % of Exp. (right)

Source: National Association of State Budget Officers and HilltopSecurities.

https://www.pewtrusts.org/en/research-and-analysis/data-visualizations/2014/fiscal-50?utm_campaign=financeandeconomy_sfh________&utm_source=twitter_states&utm_medium=social&utm_content=_____chart_&utm_term=cta_yourstate#ind1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/1319/text
https://www.pewtrusts.org/en/research-and-analysis/data-visualizations/2014/fiscal-50?utm_campaign=financeandeconomy_sfh________&utm_source=twitter_states&utm_medium=social&utm_content=_____chart_&utm_term=cta_yourstate#ind1
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/12/HTS_municipal-commentary_12.6.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/12/HTS_municipal-commentary_12.6.22.pdf
https://www.economy.com/getlocal?q=a7a91c91-cad1-447d-a03f-cd48c8cdaa21&app=eccafile


Municipal Commentary

Page 6

Local governments are beginning 
2023 in excellent fiscal shape. 
Finances were bolstered in March 
2021 with $130 billion of direct aid 
from the American Rescue Plan Act 
of 2021. 

We are concerned that some local 
governments have been relying 
too heavily on federal aid. Local 
governments who fail to find fiscal 
balance will experience downgrades. 

We expect that public finance 
ratings could continue to outpace 
downgrades in 2023 and this trend 
would be led by local government 
sector activity.

U.S. Local Government Sector
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Positive”
Recent Change: None
Author: Tom Kozlik

Local governments are beginning 2023 in excellent fiscal shape. Finances were bolstered 
in March 2021 with $130 billion of direct aid from the American Rescue Plan Act of 
2021. $65 billion flowed to cities and $65 billion flowed to counties. Governments 
must obligate funds by the end of calendar year 2024 and expend funds by the end 
of calendar year 2026. As a result, local government financial reserves are very healthy. 
Available fund balances as a percent of revenue are at 43%, according to data from 
Moody’s Investor Service. We expect that public finance ratings could continue to 
outpace downgrades in 2023 and this trend would be led by local government sector 
activity.

While there are limited major immediate stresses facing the local government sector 
there are factors that will require attention in coming budget cycles. The strong fiscal 
status should help the local government sector weather uncertainty such as shifts 
in working trends, mass transit funding requirements, inflation, commodity price 
uncertainty, infrastructure needs, and a potential recession. An important credit concern 
is that there are many local governments that have plugged holes in budgets, or even 
paid for increases in spending with the above-mentioned federal aid. When this aid is 
exhausted it will be important that finance officers regain or find fiscal balance. This 
planning should be occurring now. We are concerned that some local governments have 
been relying too heavily on federal aid. Local governments who fail to find fiscal balance 
will experience downgrades. We highlighted the fact that public entities are facing 
growing expenses from rising inflation and surging labor costs in The Next Big Risk (page 
9).

City Financial Reserves are Also Very Healthy to Begin 2023

37%

43%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Available fund balance % of revenue

Source: Moody’s Investor Service and HilltopSecurities.

https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/09/Next-Big-Risk_commentary_9.8.22.pdf


Municipal Commentary

Page 7

Our opinion on the U.S. school 
district sector remains auspicious 
because funding and direct revenue 
streams have built a solid cushion. 

Attracting and retaining teachers, 
counselors and staff is harder than 
ever. Certainly public school districts 
have to consider operational and 
financial competitive pressures from 
charter and private schools as well. 

School district credit quality is often 
reliant on state credit and under the 
current circumstances that is a credit 
positive. U.S. state credit quality is 
very strong.

U.S. School Districts
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Positive”
Recent Change: None
Author: Ted Chapman

Our opinion on the U.S. school district sector remains auspicious because funding and 
direct revenue streams have built a solid cushion. Schools were also a beneficiary of 
the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. The legislation allocated $123 billion in school 
funding. This is on top of the funds sent to states and local governments. Also, state 
funding as a percentage of total K-12 spending has trended steadily upward for more 
than a decade before plateauing at about 47% of total revenues. School district credit 
quality is often reliant on state credit and under the current circumstances that is a 
credit positive. U.S. state credit quality is very strong. States are financially much better 
positioned in 2023 than they were entering previous economic downturns. 

The winter 2022 “triple-demic” of respiratory syncytial virus (RSV,) flu and the latest 
COVID strains serves as a reminder of what could be the new normal for local school 
administrators. Sadly, that is not the only headline risk pressuring local school health 
and safety budgets: campus security expenditures are projected to grow at more than 
8% per year for at least the next few years and has been a consideration in a number of 
recent bond elections. Attracting and retaining teachers, counselors and staff is harder 
than ever. Certainly public school districts have to consider operational and financial 
competitive pressures from charter and private schools as well. However, the population 
of school-age children might finally be on an upswing after years of flat-to-declining 
numbers in many states; the Census Bureau noted that total enrollment in kindergarten 
rose 8% in 2021. For most public school districts, state revenues are based on some type 
of weighted or adjusted per pupil headcount. 

State Share of Total K-12 Funding Has Remained Steady Recently

47%

46%

43%

44%

45%

46%

47%

48%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Source: US Census Bureau and HilltopSecurities.

https://www.cnbc.com/2022/07/06/the-school-security-industry-was-valued-at-3point1-billion-in-2021.html
https://www.census.gov/newsroom/press-releases/2022/school-enrollment.html


Municipal Commentary

Page 8

Airports
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Stable”
Recent Change: None
Author: Phil Villaluz

The airport sector received much attention in the depths of the COVID-19 related 
shutdowns. There are not many sectors that experienced as much uncertainty as this 
one. Shifts in the industry have occurred that are having a differing impact nationwide, 
also. The CEO of United Airlines expects a “permanent structural change” because of 
changes related to hybrid work and a new level of leisure travel demand, for example. 
Here is what is happening with the numbers within the sector. Passenger enplanements 
have largely recovered and in cases some individual airports have even surpassed 2019 
levels. As a result, airports have returned to more normalized rate-setting flexibility and 
revenue metrics; we think this supports rating stability for the sector. Adjustments will be 
made to support any structural changes, and we expect airlines and airports will be able 
to make the necessary adjustments over the near term.

Airport finances and liquidity levels have benefitted from significant federal aid, however, 
it is projected that airport operators will exhaust most of this assistance by fiscal 2024. 
Furthermore, airport and airline labor and capacity constraints, combined with an 
anticipated softening US economy in 2023 could moderate the recovery in air travel as 
both leisure and business travelers cut back on spending.

Passenger Enplanements Estimated to Recover to Between 2016 and 2017 Levels 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

2000 2003 2006 2009 2012 2015 2018 2021

Annual enplanements (# in millions)

Source: Bureau of Transportation Statistics and HilltopSecurities. 2022 enplanements are estimated assuming a recovery to 
90% of pre-pandemic levels.

The airport sector received much 
attention in the depths of the 
COVID-19 related shutdowns. 
There are not many sectors that 
experienced as much uncertainty as 
this one. 

Airport and airline labor and 
capacity constraints, combined with 
anticipated softening US economy in 
2023 could moderate the recovery in 
air travel as both leisure and business 
travelers cut back on spending.

Airports have returned to more 
normalized rate-setting flexibility 
and revenue metrics; we think this 
supports rating stability for the 
sector.

https://www.foxbusiness.com/lifestyle/united-airlines-ceo-says-hybrid-work-has-caused-permanent-structural-change-in-leisure-travel-demand


Municipal Commentary

Page 9

Charter Schools
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Stable”
Recent Change: This is the first time we have included this sector.
Author: Yaffa Rattner

We are initially assigning a “Stable” outlook on the Charter School sector. Charter schools 
currently educate approximately 3.7 million or 7.5% of K-12 students in the United 
States and accounted for $4.8 billion in municipal debt issued in 2022. Charters are 
most prevalent in California, Texas, Florida, Arizona, New York, Pennsylvania, Colorado, 
and Michigan. Charter schools gained in enrollment during the pandemic and those 
enrollment increases were largely maintained as students benefitted from generally 
more flexible curriculums and academic gains when compared to traditional public 
schools. Some investors see charter schools as recession proof as the charters are 
tuition free for parents, and funding, predominantly state aid, is typically determined by 
enrollment which has been growing. 

Charter schools operate via a charter with an authorizer that typically allows more 
flexibility to educational approach, as long as, financial, academic, and governance 
standards are maintained. Given the sharp increases in enrollment, from 1.6 million 
children in 2009 to 3.7 million children today, there has been a race to construct 
appropriate facilities. Funding for the schools varies state by state but follows the student 
and increases with enrollment growth. Ongoing credit related factors and metrics to 
watch on individual charter schools would be liquidity, capital needs, teacher availability, 
academic performance, demographic trends in the area, and a management team that 
can produce stable financial and academic results. Therefore, charter schools with good 
management, sound academic performance, and solid enrollment with significant 
waitlists are poised to weather economic challenges in the medium term. 

Annual Charter School Enrollment (#s in millions)

3.70

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

2010 2013 2016 2019 2021

Source: National Alliance for Public Charter Schools and HilltopSecurities.

Charter schools currently educate 
approximately 3.7 million or 7.5% 
of K-12 students in the United States 
and accounted for $4.8 billion in 
municipal debt issued in 2022. 

Charter schools with good 
management, sound academic 
performance, and solid enrollment 
with significant waitlists are poised 
to weather economic challenges in 
the medium term.

Charter schools gained in enrollment 
during the pandemic and those 
enrollment increases were largely 
maintained as students benefitted 
from generally more flexible 
curriculums and academic gains 
when compared to traditional public 
schools.



Municipal Commentary

Page 10

Community Facilities Districts
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Stable”
Recent Change: This is the first time we have included this sector. 
Author: Doug Nelson

A community facilities district (CFD) is a special taxing district created within a 
municipality that allows the financing of the installation, operation and maintenance of 
public improvements that benefit a specified area usually within the district’s boundary.  
CFDs are secured by special taxes levied based on the parcel size.  Many CFDs are 
located in California, but there are other states that use a similar mechanism for new 
development.  Most CFD bonds issues are non-rated, however, the larger CFDs can be 
investment grade and often come to market with insurance. With the passage of the 
Affordable Housing and High Roads Jobs Act of 2022 in California, which allows approval 
of affordable housing development on commercially zoned land, it will be interesting to 
see if the use of CFDs increases. 

Housing starts have been slowing nationwide and in California, however, property values 
continue to rise albeit, more slowly in California due to a combination of rising mortgage 
rates and non-affordability. There is still demand for housing in California.  The graph 
below shows that growth in California housing prices have lagged the rest of the U.S. 
which can be explained by existing elevated housing prices and lack of affordability.  
According to the Case-Shiller Home Price index, between August of 2021 and August 
of 2022, the average home price in the U.S. rose 12%.  Since growth has already been 
slowing in California, a major downturn in housing prices is not expected statewide. In 
addition, property values in California are expected to remain relatively stable, therefore, 
very few CFDs are expected to default or become distressed in California, but there will 
be a slower growth trajectory in the state.

Metros Where Housing Prices Lagged the U.S., % YoY change ending Aug. 2022

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8% Case-Shiller Index

Source: Case-Shiller Home Price Index and HilltopSecurities.

A community facilities district (CFD) 
is a special taxing district created 
within a municipality that allows 
the financing of the installation, 
operation and maintenance of 
public improvements that benefit 
a specified area usually within the 
district’s boundary.  

Property values in California are 
expected to remain relatively stable, 
therefore, very few CFDs are expected 
to default or become distressed in 
California, but there will be a slower 
growth trajectory in the state.

Housing starts have been slowing 
nationwide and in California, 
however, property values continue 
to rise albeit, more slowly in 
California due to a combination of 
rising mortgage rates and non-
affordability.

https://trackbill.com/bill/california-assembly-bill-2011-affordable-housing-and-high-road-jobs-act-of-2022/2226543/#:~:text=This%20bill%20would%20create%20the,zone%20where%20office%2C%20retail%2C%20or


Municipal Commentary

Page 11

There were fiscal pressures for non-
profit Health Care (Investment Grade) 
before the COVID crisis, pressures 
heightened during the worst of the 
COVID-19 period, and financial 
concerns have not abated.

Large geographical diverse systems 
and hospital districts that collect 
property taxes have fared better than 
smaller systems and stand-alone 
facilities.  Consolidations, partnering 
and affiliations are still occurring.

Federal aid has been enormously 
positive for state and local 
governments. That is not still the case 
for the non-profit health sector still. 

Health Care (Investment Grade)
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Negative”
Recent Change: None
Author: Doug Nelson

There were fiscal pressures for non-profit Health Care (Investment Grade) before the 
COVID crisis, pressures heightened during the worst of the COVID-19 period, and 
financial concerns have not abated. In general, 2022 was another tough year for hospitals 
and the non-profit Health Care (Investment Grade) sector. In the current landscape 
operating expenses have increased substantially as a result of continued staffing issues, 
inflation, cyberattacks, and the resurgence of COVID strains and flu outbreaks. Operating 
cashflow is expected to grow somewhere between 10-20% in 2023 according to 
Moody’s Investor Service medians, which sounds good on the surface. But, this is after 
a horrendous 2022 where operating cashflow was projected to decline somewhere 
between 30%-35%. Also, liquidity metrics, like days cash on hand, are expected to 
weaken in 2022 and 2023.

In addition, federal aid has been enormously positive for state and local governments. 
That is not still the case for the non-profit health sector. Federal and state subsidies 
and supplemental funding that occurred during the pandemic are no longer available 
and even with increased volumes, revenues have not kept pace with expenses.  Some 
states, such as California, with its Hospital Quality Assurance Fee Program, do provide 
some additional support, but these programs haven’t been sufficient to keep margins 
from getting weaker.  Large geographical diverse systems and hospital districts that 
collect property taxes have fared better than smaller systems and stand-alone facilities.  
Consolidations, partnering and affiliations are still occurring.

Help Wanted – U.S. Health Care & Social Assistance Job Opening, Hire and Quit Rates

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Jan-12 Apr-13 Jul-14 Oct-15 Jan-17 Apr-18 Jul-19 Oct-20 Jan-22

Hire rate (%) Opening rate (%) Separation rate (%)

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics and HilltopSecurities.



Municipal Commentary

Page 12

Our initial outlook for non-
profit Health Care (Non and Sub 
Investment Grade) is “Negative."

Based upon the significant decreases 
in net income generation and 
liquidity, management teams of 
lower rated and non-rated hospitals 
generally have less flexibility in 
reacting to financial challenges 
which supports our "Negative" 
outlook.  

Total expenses for hospitals increased 
between November 2022 and 
November 2021 by 7% or 19% when 
comparing 2019, with labor expenses 
accounting for 9% year to date 
growth. 

Health Care (Non and Sub Investment Grade)
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Negative”
Recent Change: This is the first time we have included this sector.
Author: Yaffa Rattner

Our initial outlook for non-profit Health Care (Non and Sub Investment Grade) is 
“Negative,” recognizing the expense pressures, particularly as it relates to labor 
challenges, that are expected to extend into 2023 and the generally lower turning 
radius that is exhibited by non-rated or below investment grade hospitals. In fact, total 
expenses for these hospitals increased between November 2022 and November 2021 
by 7% or 19% when comparing 2019, with labor expenses accounting for 9% year to 
date growth. According to data from KaufmanHall, adjusted patient days were up slightly 
at 3% year over year, emergency room visits were up 5%, and operating room minutes 
were flat, negatively affecting structural balance between recurring revenues and 
recurring expenses which was also challenged in 2021. 

While Health Care (Investment Grade) entities are generally larger with sound market 
share, and sizable liquidity, hospitals that are below investment grade or non-rated tend 
to be smaller with less liquidity. As a result, there is generally less flexibility if utilization 
trends down or expenses trend up.  Together the revenue and expense issues have 
eroded net income, compressed operating margins, and available liquidity. Take for 
example, liquidity as measured in Days Cash on Hand or Unrestricted Reserves to Debt. 
According to S&P Global Ratings, the median level of Days Cash on Hand (DCOH) for an 
A- rated hospital is 301.6 DCOH with 2.1x Unrestricted Cash to debt. To compare, in the 
case of a BBB level credit, this number is reduced to 172 DCOH and 1.87x Unrestricted 
Cash to Debt. Finally, for S&P hospitals rated in the Speculative Grade Category, DCOH is 
reduced to 112 and cash to debt is only 78.5%. In 2022, according to Bloomberg data, 
there was approximately $3 billion in hospital related debt issued that was rated BBB or 
lower or non-rated. Based upon the significant decreases in net income generation and 
liquidity, management teams of lower rated and non-rated hospitals generally have less 
flexibility in reacting to financial challenges which supports our "Negative" outlook.  

National Hospital Utilization Data, Year-over-Year Changes

9%

22%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Total
Expenses

Labor
Expenses

Non Labor
Expense

Discharges Patient
Days

ED Visits OR Minutes

November 2022 to November 2021 November 2022 to November 2019

Source: KaufmanHall and HilltopSecurities.



Municipal Commentary

Page 13

Demographic shifts could be 
considered a leading factor 
contributing to further enrollment 
pressures in the higher education 
sector.

We think wealthier institutions with 
diverse revenue streams, strong 
brand recognition and student 
demand, will fare better and 
maintain credit quality, compared to 
smaller schools struggling with weak 
finances and declining enrollment.

On the financial side, sluggish 
operating revenue growth, projected 
to be approximately 2%, according 
to Moody’s Investor Service, will likely 
lag inflation for much of 2023. 

Higher Education
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: Public “Cautious” and Private “Negative”
Recent Change: None
Author: Phil Villaluz

Demographic shifts could be considered a leading factor contributing to further 
enrollment pressures in the higher education sector. By 2025 the number of high school 
graduates is expected to decline steadily for at least ten years according to forecasts by 
the Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education. Also, in future years it is likely 
that new demographic trends will also reduce the number of college-bound high school 
graduates. Nathan Grawe, the author of Demographics and the Demand for Higher 
Education Enrollment and creator of the Higher Education Demand Index (HEDI) projects 
less college-bound grads in certain regions of the U.S. than we’ve seen in recent decades.

On the financial side, sluggish operating revenue growth, projected to be approximately 
2%, according to Moody’s Investor Service, will likely lag inflation for much of 2023. 
Declining enrollments, changing consumer preferences, heightened inflationary and 
cost pressures will continue to challenge operating performance over the near to 
intermediate term. Erosion of cash and investment positions due to investment market 
volatility may be exacerbated by the need for colleges and universities to draw on 
reserves to close budget gaps. Nonetheless, we think wealthier institutions with diverse 
revenue streams, strong brand recognition and student demand, will fare better and 
maintain credit quality, compared to smaller schools struggling with weak finances and 
declining enrollment. 

Number of High School Graduates Projected to Decline After 2025 (#s in millions)

2.69

3.77 3.93

3.52

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

4.00

1988 1993 1998 2003 2008 2013 2018 2023 2028 2033

Class of 1998 to 2019 (reported)

Class of 2020 to 2025 (projected:increase)

Class of 2026 to 2037 (projected:decrease)

Grad rate increases 
mitigate contracting 

youth population

Birth declines still 
predict long-term 
graduate declines

Strong production of 
high school grads for 

two decades

Source: Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education, Knocking at the College Door: Projections of High School 
Graduates, 2020, www.knocking.wiche.edu and HilltopSecurities.



Municipal Commentary

Page 14

We lowered our sector outlook to 
“Stable” from “Positive” on slowing 
state housing finance agency (HFA) 
activity in the form of financings, 
loan originations and narrowing 
margins.

Our “Stable” outlook for HFAs is 
supported by margins that are 
expected to remain healthy at 
approximately 15%, according 
to Moody’s Investor Service 
expectations.

Bond issuance fell in 2022 to about 
$30 billion and issuance activity is 
again expected to fall in 2023. How 
far issuance falls depends upon 
interest rates, loan activity, and 
economic growth.

Housing
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: Stable
Recent Change: Lowered outlook to “Stable” from “Positive”
Author: Phil Villaluz

We lowered our sector outlook to “Stable” from “Positive” on slowing state housing 
finance agency (HFA) activity in the form of financings, loan originations and narrowing 
margins due to lower revenue from secondary market loan (or To-Be-Announced, TBA) 
sales.  It is important to note that we do not expect credit or rating deterioration in the 
near term in the sector. But, it is not a surprise that fiscal momentum is slowing especially 
as a result of rising interest rates. Bond issuance fell in 2022 to about $30 billion and 
issuance activity is again expected to fall in 2023. How far issuance falls depends upon 
interest rates, loan activity, and economic growth.

Housing Issuance Fell in 2022, and Could Fall Again in 2023

$40.12

$30.43

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Housing Issuance, Single & Multi. Family HFA ($ in billions)

Source: Refinitiv and HilltopSecurities.

Our “Stable” outlook for HFAs is supported by margins that are expected to remain 
healthy at approximately 15%, according to Moody’s Investor Service expectations, as 
higher investment income and increased revenue from bond-financed loans help to 
counter declining revenue from TBA sales. Furthermore, single- and multifamily loan 
portfolio delinquencies should remain at manageable levels; multifamily portfolios 
will be supported by strong demand for affordable rental housing. HFA delinquencies 
(and loans in foreclosure) rose to almost 8% (according to Moody’s HFA Surveys) a few 
years after the housing crisis and Great Recession. They rose to almost 10% (mostly 
delinquencies) during COVID, but these levels still did not significantly pressure State HFA 
credit profiles.



Municipal Commentary

Page 15

The public power sector’s good 
cash position and coverage ratios 
are under pressure. Average hourly 
earnings increased 5% in 2022. 

Since buying is quicker than building, 
we are watching how fixed and 
commodity costs will be priced into 
new purchased power agreements 
and the impact on finances.

Everyone will be watching the 
Environmental Protection Agency’s 
(EPA) allocation of the $27 billion 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund.

Public Power (Electric)
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Stable”
Recent Change: None
Author: Ted Chapman

The public power sector’s good cash position and coverage ratios are under pressure. 
Average hourly earnings increased 5% in 2022.  Unlike other sectors, rising utility wages 
are not to attract talent, but to retain it: the sector’s unemployment rate was a mere 
1.3% as of November 2022 and has averaged only 2.2% since 2018. Annual retail sales 
of electricity declined after each recent recession, including COVID, and it took years to 
recover; 2022 was about where we were in 2018. Demand destruction from conservation 
is part of the decrease as well. Still, rising costs are being recouped from a static number 
of megawatt-hours.

Congress might consider incentives for the physical (given recent vandal attacks) and 
cyber security of the grid, disaster resilience and maybe the dearth of electric vehicle 
charging stations. Everyone will be watching the Environmental Protection Agency’s 
(EPA) allocation of the $27 billion Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund. EPA just proposed 
tougher particulate matter standards that would impact coal-fired plants, though 19 
gigawatts are slated to be retired by 2025 anyway. That retirement of baseload, and 
drought impacting western hydropower, are creating headaches for grid operators (PJM 
and TVA, Christmas weekend 2022; Cal-ISO, summer 2022). Given Vogtle’s cost, timeline 
and participant disharmony issues, new nuclear is at least a decade away; production 
tax credits are just to extend the life of existing units. Natural gas plants take two to 
three years to build, with fuel that may cost twice as much in 2023 as it did in 2021. 
Renewables have lower capacity factors and require new transmission. Public power is 
risk averse despite Infrastructure Reduction Act incentives for green energy. Since buying 
is quicker than building, we are watching how fixed and commodity costs will be priced 
into new purchased power agreements and the impact on finances.

The Residential Electricity Price Outlook

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Jan-20 Jul-20 Jan-21 Jul-21 Jan-22 Jul-22 Jan-23 Jul-23

Natural Gas, $/mmBtu (left) Residential Electricity, cents per kWh (right)

Source: Source: US Energy Information Administration and HilltopSecurities.

http://Average hourly earnings
http://Average hourly earnings
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CES4422000003?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://www.eia.gov/electricity/data.php#sales
https://www.eia.gov/electricity/data.php#sales


Municipal Commentary

Page 16

Our initial outlook for the Senior 
Living sector is “Negative,” as we 
expect greater operating headwinds 
over the medium term.

We believe that senior living 
communities that are in highly 
desirable areas, with strong 
occupancy, seasoned management, 
and good liquidity are prepared to 
weather these challenging times. 

Given available supply, rate increases 
have remained relatively muted, on 
average, at approximately 4-5%, 
while the costs for labor and food 
rose in many cases by more than 
10%.

Senior Living
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Negative”
Recent Change: This is the first time we have included this sector.
Author: Yaffa Rattner

Our initial outlook for the Senior Living sector is “Negative,” as we expect greater 
operating headwinds over the medium term. Although 10,000 baby boomers turn 
65 every day, many people chose to age-in-place and are not necessarily seeking 
congregate care. According to the National Investment Council (NIC), senior living 
occupancy approximated 82.8% as of October 2022. While this is a significant increase 
from the pandemic low of 77.9% recorded in June 2021, occupancy has not fully 
recovered to the 88% level recorded at the end of 2019 before the pandemic began. 
Occupancy in assisted living units, which reflects a more need-based care, has had the 
strongest recovery to date, while occupancy in independent living and nursing care units 
have lagged. In general, revenues generated from independent living units generate the 
highest operating margin as they are less labor intensive then assisted living and nursing 
care. 

Given available supply, rate increases have remained relatively muted, on average, at 
approximately 4-5%, while the costs for labor and food rose in many cases by more 
than 10%. Together the relatively flat growth in incremental revenues coupled with 
the more significant acceleration of expenses have compressed operating margins 
and have challenged operators to produce stable financial results. To date, there have 
been significant headlines in the space and approximately 50% of the 2022 municipal 
defaults have been in the retirement space according to Municipal Market Analytics and 
Bloomberg. We believe that senior living communities that are in highly desirable areas, 
with strong occupancy, seasoned management, and good liquidity are prepared to 
weather these challenging times. However, communities with limited liquidity or those 
that are operating in more competitive locations, are poised for additional challenges in 
2023. 

Senior Living Occupancy, Peak to Trough

88%
91%

85%
87%

82%
85%

80% 79%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Senior Housing Majority Independent
Living

Majority Assisted
Living

Majority Nursing Care

1Q 2020 2Q 2021 3Q 2022

Source: NIC MAP Data, powered by NIC MAP Vision and HilltopSecurities.



Municipal Commentary

Page 17

Declining domestic cigarette sales 
are largely responsible for declines 
in the actual Master Settlement 
Agreement payments that secure the 
bonds.

This expected decline in consumption 
will put even more downward 
pressure on Master Settlement 
Agreement revenues which are used 
to repay the bonds.

The FDA also announced a plan 
to propose a rule to establish a 
maximum allowable nicotine level 
in cigarettes that would make them 
minimally- or non-addictive.

Tobacco
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Negative”
Recent Change: None
Author: Doug Nelson

The tobacco settlement revenue securitizations are bond issues secured by the tobacco 
settlement revenues tobacco companies agreed to pay to state and other governments 
under the Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) in 1998. Declining domestic cigarette 
sales are largely responsible for declines in the actual MSA payments that secure the 
bonds. Annual U.S. MSA domestic cigarette shipment data has been steadily in decline as 
reported by the National Association of Attorneys General.

The tobacco sector continues to experience consumption declines and event risk.  The 
U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has broad authority over the manufacture, 
sale, marketing and packaging of tobacco products. The FDA has announced proposed 
product standards to prohibit menthol as a characterizing flavor in cigarettes. There is 
no required timeline to implement this standard. The FDA also announced a plan to 
propose a rule to establish a maximum allowable nicotine level in cigarettes that would 
make them minimally- or non-addictive. The proposed rule is expected in May 2023.  
Moody’s Investors Service estimates that a ban on menthol could accelerate the annual 
percentage rate decline of volumes to the low double-digit level over the next three to 
five years. This expected decline in consumption will put even more downward pressure 
on Master Settlement Agreement revenues which are used to repay the bonds.

U.S. Cigarette Shipments Continue Their Downward Trajectory

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

0

100

200

300

400

500

2000 2003 2006 2009 2012 2015 2018 2021

Cigarette Shipments (in billions) YoY % Change

Source: National Association of Attorneys General and HilltopSecurities.



Municipal Commentary

Page 18

Durable traffic trends, as measured 
by vehicle miles traveled, and strong 
financial profiles support credit 
stability in the U.S. toll road sector. 

Tempering our outlook is 
expectations for slowing commercial 
traffic growth. Entities planning 
to ramp-up capital spending for 
maintenance and expansion projects 
in the near future may result in rising 
debt levels and costs.

Toll Facilities
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Stable”
Recent Change: None
Author: Phil Villaluz

Durable traffic trends, as measured by vehicle miles traveled, and strong financial profiles 
support credit stability in the U.S. toll road sector. Throughout the pandemic, toll road 
credits have been among the most resilient of transportation infrastructure names. Many 
toll road operators saw traffic and revenue figures rebound to pre-pandemic levels, and 
we expect the recovery to be maintained over the next two years, supported by stable-
to-growing commercial vehicle traffic and steady return of passenger traffic usage. Also, 
facilities with toll rate-setting policies linked to inflation could see even stronger revenue 
growth in 2023 further supporting improved operating metrics. Tempering our outlook is 
expectations for slowing commercial traffic growth. Entities planning to ramp-up capital 
spending for maintenance and expansion projects in the near future may result in rising 
debt levels and costs.

Vehicle Miles Traveled is Continuing to Recover From COVID-19

2,400,000

2,600,000

2,800,000

3,000,000

3,200,000

3,400,000

1997 2000 2003 2006 2009 2012 2015 2018 2021

Source: U.S. Dept. of Transportation and Hilltop Securities. This is a 12 month moving average and #s are in millions of vehicle 
miles traveled.



Municipal Commentary

Page 19

The year begins with 30% of the 
population in moderate or worse 
drought conditions. If the federal 
government finally mandates cuts 
to the seven states that use Colorado 
River water, larger municipal systems 
have backup options but, typically 
they are more expensive options.

We expect that 2023 could pressure 
what has generally been good DSC 
and strong liquidity metrics.

Though an efficient essential service, 
the rate of increase in water bills 
has outstripped that of comparable 
services, personal real income and 
inflation for decades. 

Water and Sewer
HilltopSecurities Credit Outlook: “Stable”
Recent Change: None
Author: Ted Chapman

The year begins with 30% of the population in moderate or worse drought conditions. 
If the federal government finally mandates cuts to the seven states that use Colorado 
River water, larger municipal systems have backup options but, typically they are more 
expensive options. Small and rural water systems typically do not have other options to 
source water. Agriculture and power generation, critical to the Western U.S. economy, 
together use four to five times as much water as municipal systems and their output 
could also be impacted. The California Dept. Water Resources announced in December 
2022 that an initial State Water Project allocation of only 5% of requested supplies, 
meaning even if conditions aren’t as bad as this time last year (0%), they’re still bad 
enough that 29 public water agencies serving 27 million Californians likely will prolong 
conservation measures. 

The water and sewer sector has no shortage of needs. This is not just headline risk. Real 
life reports of system failures have made the national press in recent years. In fiscal 2022, 
7% of the approximately 50,000 community drinking water systems had health-based 
violations of the Safe Drinking Water Act; 1% had violations that have the potential to 
produce immediate illness. There is an extensive list of active multi-billion dollar Clean 
Water Act corrective action programs. We expect regular borrowing will pressure debt 
service coverage (DSC) and drive more rate increases. Though an efficient essential 
service, the rate of increase in water bills has outstripped that of comparable services 
(see line chart below), personal real income and inflation for decades. This heightens 
the risk that local water leaders might make decisions that, while sensitive to customers, 
could come at the detriment of financial performance. Operational challenges tend to 
squeeze net revenues, too. We expect that 2023 could pressure what has generally been 
good DSC and strong liquidity metrics.

Selected Inflation Rates, Last 25 Years

290 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

1998 2001 2004 2007 2010 2013 2016 2019 2022

CP
I -

Al
l U

rb
an

 (a
dj

us
te

d 
fo

r 1
99

8 
=

 1
00

)

Real Disposable Income Per Capita CPI, All Items Housing

Water & Sewer Garbage & Trash Collection Wireless Telephone

Electricity Public Transport Cable & Satellite TV

Source: Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics and HilltopSecurities.

https://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/DmData/DataTables.aspx
https://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/DmData/DataTables.aspx
https://water.ca.gov/News/News-Releases/2022/Dec-22/DWR-Announces-Initial-State-Water-Project-Allocation-of-5-percent
https://water.ca.gov/News/News-Releases/2022/Dec-22/DWR-Announces-Initial-State-Water-Project-Allocation-of-5-percent
https://echo.epa.gov/trends/comparative-maps-dashboards/drinking-water-dashboard?state=National
https://echo.epa.gov/trends/comparative-maps-dashboards/drinking-water-dashboard?state=National


Municipal Commentary

Page 20

The paper/commentary was prepared by HilltopSecurities (HTS). It is intended for informational purposes only and does not 
constitute legal or investment advice, nor is it an offer or a solicitation of an offer to buy or sell any investment or other specific 
product. Information provided in this paper was obtained from sources that are believed to be reliable; however, it is not guaranteed 
to be correct, complete, or current, and is not intended to imply or establish standards of care applicable to any attorney or advisor in 
any particular circumstances. The statements within constitute the views of HTS as of the date of the document and may differ from 
the views of other divisions/departments of affiliate Hilltop Securities Inc. In addition, the views are subject to change without notice. 
This paper represents historical information only and is not an indication of future performance. This material has not been prepared 
in accordance with the guidelines or requirements to promote investment research, it is not a research report and is not intended as 
such. Sources available upon request.

Hilltop Securities Inc. is a registered broker-dealer, registered investment adviser and municipal advisor firm that does not provide 
tax or legal advice. HTS is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hilltop Holdings, Inc. (NYSE: HTH) located at 717 N. Harwood St., Suite 3400, 
Dallas, Texas 75201, (214) 859-1800, 833-4HILLTOP

© 2023 Hilltop Securities Inc. | All rights reserved | MEMBER: NYSE/FINRA/SIPC

Definitions of HilltopSecurities Municipal Sector Credit Outlooks
Positive: HilltopSecurities believes there are factors which point towards improving 
issuer or sector credit quality. This may result in a higher level of credit ratings upgrades 
versus downgrades if issues are rated.

Stable: HilltopSecurities believes there are factors which point towards stable issuer 
or sector credit quality. This is likely to result in an even level of credit ratings upgrades 
versus downgrades if issues are rated.

Cautious: HilltopSecurities believes there are factors which introduce the potential for 
declines in issuer or sector credit quality. This may result in credit ratings downgrades 
only slightly outnumbering upgrades if issues are rated.

Negative: HilltopSecurities believes there are factors which point towards weakening 
issuer or credit quality. This will likely result in a higher number of credit ratings 
downgrades versus upgrades if the issues in the sector are rated.

Recent HilltopSecurities Municipal Commentary
• A Public Finance and Infrastructure Fiscal Policy Checklist and a Warning, Jan. 9, 2023
• Web3, Blockchain and U.S. Public Finance, Dec. 15, 2022
• The Texas PSF is Up Against a Federally Allocated Cap, Dec. 8, 2022
• State Credit Mainly Improved & Most Positioned to Withstand a Recession, Dec. 6, 

2022

Readers may view all of the HilltopSecurities Municipal Commentary here.

https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/01/HTS_municipal-commentary_1.9.23.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/12/HTS_municipal-commentary_12.15.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/12/HTS_municipal-commentary_12.8.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/12/HTS_municipal-commentary_12.6.22.pdf
https://www.hilltopsecurities.com/public-finance/municipal-commentary/

	Top
	A.	Twin Cities North Chamber of Commerce - John Connelly
	TCN_MFGC
	City Council Presentation

	A.	Approval of Minutes - January 17, 2023 City Council Meeting
	01.17.23 CC

	B.	Contractor's Request for Payment No. 3 - DPG - Able Park Shelter
	Contractor Payment #3 - DPG Inv. # 2026 Able Park Shelter App-3_signed

	C.	Resolution 2023-05 Accepting Monetary Donation from Spring Lake Park Lions
	23-05 - Accepting Donation from Spring Lake Park Lions

	D.	2023 Frist Half Assessment - Suburban Rate Authority
	2023 First Half Half Assessment - Suburban Rate Authority

	E.	Contractor's License
	Contractor's License

	F.	Sign Permits
	Sign Permits

	G.	Business License
	2023 Massage Therapy Cover Sheet (2)

	A.	Public Works Report
	January 2023  Public Works Report

	B.	Code Enforcement Report
	January Code Enforcement Report

	A.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 530 82nd Ave NE
	Resolution order for 530 82nd Ave NE

	B.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 7864 Tyler St NE
	Resolution order for 7864 Tyler St NE

	C.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 7827 Quincy St NE
	Resolution order for 7827 Quincy St NE

	D.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 7927 Buchanan Street NE
	Resolution order for 7927 Buchanan St NE

	E.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 7799 University Avenue NE
	Resolution order for 7799 Building

	F.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 7779 University Avenue NE
	Resolution order for 7779 Building

	G.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 7819 University Avenue NE
	Resolution order for 7819 Building

	H.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 7879 University Avenue NE
	Resolution order for 7879 Building

	I.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 7825 Terrace Road NE
	Resolution order for 7825 Terrace RD NE

	J.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 530 81st Avenue NE
	Resolution order for 530 78TH Ave NE

	K.	Resolution Approving Rental License Revocation - 515 78th Avenue NE
	Resolution order for 515 78th Ave NE

	A.	Resolution 2023-06, Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Expenditures from Tax-Exempt Bonds
	CC - resolution 2023-06 declaring intent to reimburse expenditures from tax exempt bonds - 2.2.23
	23-06 - Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Expenditures from Tax Exempt Bond Proceeds

	A.	Phone System Proposal
	Phone System Upgrade

	B.	Authorize Conditional Job Offer to Trevor Heller for Public Works Maintenance Position
	CC - PW hire - 2.1.23

	C.	Schedule Work Session
	CC - work session - 2.1.23

	A.	Attorney's Report
	B.	Engineer's Report
	2023-02-06_Engineers_Report_for_SLP
	2023-02-01^Council_Stantec_State Aid Allocation Summary_

	C.	Administrator Report
	A.	Approve Motion to Go Into Closed Session to Discuss Possible Sale of Property Described as Lot 4, Block 1 McKinley Manor Addn
	CC - sale of Lot 4 Block 1 McKinley Manor - 2.1.23

	B.	Correspondence
	Correspondence Cover Page
	SpringLakePark
	NMTV December 2022
	NMTV City December 2022
	Connexus Connection
	Anoka County Historical Society Newsletter
	Fridley Newsletter
	2022 Annual Update on the East Bethel Water Reclamation Facility
	East Bethel Water Reclamation Facility Fact Sheet
	LiUNA! Newsletter
	Thank You Card - Representative Bernardy
	muni-market-2023-HTS_municipal-commentary_1.17.23

	Bottom

